
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Thursday 12 November 2020 
 

Licensing Committee 
 

Friday 20 November 2020, 2.30 pm 
 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Ron Munby MBE (Chair) Councillor Adrian Kirkbride (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Mary Bainbridge Councillor Carmel Bell 
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Peter Gaston 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Peter Kendall Councillor Elaine Lynch 
Councillor Alan Smith Councillor Stephen Stoddart 
Councillor Alan Tyson Councillor Will Wilkinson 
Councillor Lynda Williams  
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Lee Jardine on 01900 702502. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 56) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following meetings; 
 
Licensing Committee held on 29 October 2019 
 
Licensing Panels held on 21 August 2019, 12 September 2019 and 14 February 
2020. 
 
Licensing Regulatory Panels held on 13 September 2019, 04 October 2019, 19 
December 2019, 24 December 2019, 10 February 2020 and 14 February 2020. 
 
 

 
  



2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting. 

  

5. Review of Statement of Licensing Policy 2021  (Pages 57 - 130) 
 

Licensing Committee Procedures  (Pages 131 - 134) 
 

 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Wednesday 16 December 2020, 2.30 pm 

Allerdale House, Workington 
 
 



At a meeting of the Licensing Committee held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, 
Workington on Tuesday 29 October 2019 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Ron Munby MBE (Chair)  
Councillor Peter Gaston Councillor Peter Kendall 
Councillor Elaine Lynch Councillor Alan Smith 
Councillor Will Wilkinson  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Adrian Kirkbride Councillor Mary 
Bainbridge, Councillor Carmel Bell, Councillor Allan Daniels, Councillor Malcolm 
Grainger, Councillor Daniel Horsley, Councillor Sally Lansbury, Councillor Owen Martin 
and Councillor Lynda Williams 
 
Staff Present 
 
G Collinson, J Irving, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 

 
148. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the following meetings were signed as a correct record; 
 
Licensing Committee held on 11 September 2019 
 
Licensing Panels held on 18 February 2019 and 11 July 2019 
 
Licensing Regulatory Panels held on 03 July 2019 and 11 July 2019 
 

149. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

150. Questions  
 
None received 
 

151. Review of Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Knowledge Test  
 
The Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report which sought 
member’s approval to allow an extension of one month for existing drivers to 
pass the knowledge test from 31 October 2019 to 30 November 2019, and to 
give delegated powers to the Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer and 
Licensing and Compliance Officer in conjunction with Legal Services and the 
Chair/Vice Chair of Licensing Committee to allow an extension after 30 
November 2019 for individual cases. 
 
The Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer then went through the report, 
advising members that all drivers have been reminded about the requirement to 
complete the knowledge test in writing (some up to four times) and drivers that 
have still yet to complete the test have also been contacted by telephone. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
Due to software issues the knowledge test did not become live until 19th 
November 2019. As drivers have not had the full 12 months to complete the 
test, the extension is proposed in the interest of fairness. Failure to pass the test 
by the deadline would result in suspension of the drivers licence. 
 
Members then asked questions of the officers regarding the numbers of drivers 
left to pass the test, in response the Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer 
confirmed that of 303 drivers, 238 had passed the test with 65 remaining, 
however some of the 65 would be retiring or leaving the trade. Officers then 
clarified that all the lost time due to the delay with the introduction of the test 
would be recovered with the new extended deadline of 30 November 2019. 
 
Councillor Smith then moved the motion to approve the officer’s 
recommendations. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Kendall. 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 6 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Agreed 
 
Members approved the officer’s recommendations as follows; 
 

a) Allow an extension of time of time of one month for existing drivers to 
pass the knowledge test, extended from the original date of 31 October 
2019 with a new date of 30 November 2019 and suspend all existing 
drivers who have passed the knowledge test by 30 November 2019; and 
 

b) Give delegated powers to the Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer 
and Licensing and Compliance Officer in conjunction with legal services 
and the Chair or Vice Chair of the Licensing Committee to allow an 
extension after 30 November 2019 in individual cases. 

 
 
 

152. Review of Hackney Carriage/Private Hire DBS Requirements  
 
The Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report which sought 
member’s approval to amend Hackney Carriage and Private Hire DBS 
requirements. At the Licensing Committee meeting on 11 September 2019, it 
was resolved that applicants for hackney carriage and private hire licences 
would have to subscribe to the DBS update service throughout the duration of 
the licence, this report was to recommend how the DBS subscription should be 
introduced. 
 
The Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer then went through the report, 
advising members of the cost savings of the DBS service, clarifying that once 
registered to the service, the applicant would not need to pay to apply for a new 
DBS check, currently costing £40 plus admin fees. 

Page 4



 
The report recommended that all applicants for new licences to submit an 
enhanced DBS disclosure certificate as part of the application criteria and to 
subscribe to the update service within 28 days, and that all existing licence 
holders are to submit a new enhanced DBS disclosure certificate when due and 
subscribe to the update service at that point. The final recommendation was 
that once the annual subscription is in place, the checking of records will be 
completed on an annual basis as close to the anniversary of the grant of the 
licence as possible.  
 
Members then asked further questions in relation to the cost savings of the DBS 
subscription service. 
 
Councillor Wilkinson then moved the motion to approve the officer’s 
recommendations. 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Gaston. 
 
A vote was taken on the motion 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 6 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Agreed 
 
Members approved the officer’s recommendations as follows; 
 

a) All applicants for new licences to submit an enhanced DBS disclosure 
certificate as part of application criteria and subscribe to the update 
service within 28 days; and 

b) Existing licence holders to submit a new enhanced DBS disclosure 
certificate when due and subscribe to the update service at that point; 
and 

c) Once there is a subscription to the update service, checking of records to 
be on an annual basis as close to the anniversary of the grant of the 
licence as possible. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

153. Review of Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driving Assessment  
 
The Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report which sought 
member’s approval to amend the current policy relating to drivers inherited 
rights. 
 
The Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer then went through the report, 
advising members that on 1 June 2002 the Licensing Committee approved the 
implementation of a practical driving assessment run by the then Driving 

Page 5



Standards Agency (DSA). A decision was made by the Committee at that time, 
that existing drivers should be exempted from taking the assessment. Inherited 
rights were granted initially for existing drivers with the thought that natural 
wastage would eventually reduce and eliminate the number of drivers who had 
not passed the assessment in due course. However, after reviewing the 
numbers there are still 36 licensed drivers who have inherited rights who have 
not passed the assessment. It may be that some of those drivers may also be 
except from taking the test, as per the policy. 
 
Members were advised that an enquiry has been received by the licensing 
authority from a member of the trade, asking the authority to consider 
introducing the requirement that all drivers must pass the driving test, unless 
they are exempt. The reason for this request is to ensure that there is a level 
playing field across the trade to ensure an equal level of competence in the 
interests of public safety. 
 
Written representations were then provided to members from members of the 
Taxi trade. 
 
Members then asked questions of the officers regarding the cost of undertaking 
the practical driving test, the procurement process of the driving test provider 
and the controls currently in place within the current policy. 
 
It was advised to members that the cost of the practical driving test was 
dependant on time and day of the week, but that standard prices began at 
£82.00 (Weekday 8am – 5pm) and £98.50 at evenings and weekends. In 
relation to control measures currently in place, members were then advised that 
drivers who do not comply with policy or gain 8 or more driving points would 
need to attend a meeting of the regulatory panel. 
 
Members were comfortable that the current legislation satisfied the objective of 
protecting public health and safety, and that the appropriate measures were 
currently in place. 
 
Councillor Kendall moved the motion to leave the policy as existing so that 
eligible drivers retain inherited rights and be exempt from the driving 
assessment. 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Smith 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 6 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Agreed 
 
Members agreed to leave the policy as existing so that eligible drivers retain 
inherited rights and be exempt from the driving assessment. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
 
 

154. Renewal of Hackney Carriage/Private Drivers Licences in Extenuating 
Circumstances  
 
The Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report which sought 
member’s approval to review the renewal procedure of drivers’ licences when a 
driver cannot attend in person due extenuating circumstances. 
 
The Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer then went through the report 
explaining that the amendment to the procedure would address the practical 
difficulties experienced by members of the armed forces who may be overseas 
or applicants with other extenuating circumstances who cannot attend the office 
on time to renew their licence. It seeks to balance the legalities of ensuring the 
Licensing Authority consider and grant any licences legally with compliance of 
all existing criteria in place to assess whether an applicant is fit and proper. 
 
Members were advised that for an applicant to take advantage of the procedure 
they must advise the Licensing Authority of their circumstances four weeks in 
advance and the decision will be subject to approval by the Licensing Officers in 
conjunction with the Legal Department and Chair/Vice Chair of the Licensing 
Committee.  
 
Members then asked questions of the officers in relation to extenuating 
circumstances. 
 
Councillor Lynch then moved the motion to allow renewal of licences subject to 
requirements being adhered to in extenuating circumstances, as per officers 
recommendations. 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Wilkinson 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 6 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Agreed 
 
Members approved the officer’s recommendations to allow renewal of licences 
subject to requirements being adhered to in extenuating circumstances 
 

The meeting closed at 2.55 pm 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



At a meeting of the Licensing Panel held in Cumberland Suite, Market Hall, Church 
Road, Wigton, CA7 9AA on Wednesday 21 August 2019 at 10.00 am 
 
Members 
  
Councillor Peter Gaston Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Peter Kendall  
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, J Irving, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 

 
104. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

105. Declaration of Interests  
 
5. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence. 
 Councillor Malcolm Grainger; Other Interest; Daughter in Law attends 
Solfest as a Volunteer. 
 

106. Questions  
 
None received 
 

107. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report to consider 
representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence. 
 
The report concerned an application for a premises licence for Land at Holly 
House, Goodyhills, Mawbray, CA15 6QX.  
 
The applicant was Solfest Limited. 
 
The applicant had put forward the same conditions that have previously been 
attached to a premises licence for this festival. 
 
Members were given site layout and site location plans. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer answered questions from the panel, 
confirming that Solfest would go ahead regardless of this meeting outcome as 
this was a meeting to only determine licensable activities. 
 
The Applicant, Simon Kay provided his representations, acknowledging that this 
was a complex application but that the event has an excellent reputation that 
takes pride in being family friendly. He went on to explain that he has tried to 

Page 9



work with as many local residents as possible and that he has not had any 
previous representations against the running of the festival. 
 
He continued to explain that the 2019 festival was smaller, using new fields with 
improved traffic access. 
 
The applicant then answered questions from the panel. In response he 
explained that the event can cope with 5000 cars but only 3000 were expected, 
he also provided a breakdown of all staff/volunteers that were in place to ensure 
smooth running of the festival. The panel also asked several questions in 
relation to traffic and car parking, CCTV, trespassing, stop and search and 
welfare/first aid. 
 
The panel then heard the representations from residents who had submitted 
their objections. 
 
Objector IP01 shared their concerns with the close proximity of the site to their 
dwelling, the significant impact to their living arrangements and the impact on 
their young family. IP01 also stated that crime and traffic issues were also an 
issue. 
 
Objector IP2 advised that they had issues with this festival in previous years, 
including trespassing and crime. They went onto explain the potential traffic 
issues and the difficulty they will face when leaving their dwelling, IP02 also 
suggested that the distance from their property to the festival should be 500m, 
not 200m. 
 
Objector IP3 was concerned with traffic volume, the legality of the legal notices 
and communication issues. 
 
The panel were advised of 4 further written objections in regards to traffic 
volume and access. 
 
The applicant provided his response to each objector and then provided a 
summary of his representations, including responses to concerns raised by 
objectors. He reminded the panel of the traffic management plan in place, of the 
mitigations to reduce nuisance and clarified the plans in relation to security and 
staffing/volunteers. 
 
All parties then had the opportunity to ask any further questions and to 
summarise any points they had raised. 
 
All parties were then asked to leave the meeting for the panel to consider the 
application. 
 
The Panel considered all information presented to it in the officers report, the 
additional papers provided and the representations provided at the meeting. 
 
Councillor Peter Gaston moved the motion to approve the Premises Licence 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Peter Kendall. 
 

Page 10



A vote followed, 3 voted in favour of the motion, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Resolved 
 
To grant the premises licence. 
 
Decision/Reason 
 
In making its decision, the Panel had regard to the four licensing objectives 
under the Licensing Act 2003, in particular public safety, the prevention of crime 
and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance. The Panel had also taken 
into account the oral and written representations made by residents, the 
information provided by Environmental Health, Highways and the police, 
representations received from the Premises licence holder and the information 
set out in the report by the Licensing and Compliance Officer.  The Panel has 
also had regard to the advice provided by the Legal Officer. 
 
The Panel has considered the Secretary of State’s guidance under section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003, the Council’s Licensing Policy and Human Rights.  
 
The Panel sought to balance the interests of the residents and the licence 
holder.  The Panel considered all of the residents’ representations in full.  The 
Panel noted that Environmental Health, the police and Highways were 
agreeable to the conditions as presented.   
The Panel considered the options available to it, which were: 
 

a) To grant the licence subject to the conditions mentioned in the operating 
schedule modified to such extent as the authority considers necessary 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and any mandatory 
condition. 

b) To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 
 

c) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the designated premises 
supervisor 
 

d) To reject the application 
 
The Panel felt that it was reasonable and proportionate to grant the licence 
subject to the conditions as presented in the operating schedule, and any 
condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the licence. 
 
If any party is aggrieved by this decision, they were advised of the right to 
appeal to the Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of 
the decision. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 1.20 pm 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



At a meeting of the Licensing Panel held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, 
Workington on Thursday 12 September 2019 at 10.00 am 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Peter Gaston 
Councillor Elaine Lynch  
 
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 

 
148. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Peter Gaston was elected chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

149. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

150. Questions  
 
None received 
 

151. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence.  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report to consider 
representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence. 
 
The report concerned an application for a premises licence for Tarnside Farm, 
Tarns, Silloth, CA7 4NQ. 
 
The applicants were William Wilson Wise and Lynn Wise. 
 
The Licencing and Compliance Officer answered questions from the panel, 
confirming that the premises license can be granted without a Designated 
Premises Supervisor, the officer also clarified that this application should be 
dealt with on its own merits. 
 
The Applicants, Mr and Mrs Wise provided their representations. 
 
Mrs and Mrs Wise advised the panel that a festival has been operating for 15+ 
years on the application site and that the venue is geared for holding events, 
they also stated that all obligations had been met and that the site has utilities, 
and acceptable egress and access from four separate points. 
 
Mrs Wise went on to explain that the plan was to initially hold one large event, 
which would be a less intrusive, small, family friendly and well run event. In 

Page 13



addition the site would also accommodate smaller charity style events, events 
which would normally require temporary event notices, not premises a licence. 
 
Mrs Wise then advised the panel that she had a professional background with 
the Police with strong links to the local area. She is also an active volunteer in 
the community, volunteering with the rotary group and as a school governor. 
 
Members asked questions on the applicants, Mr and Mrs Wise clarified to 
members that the intention was to host one large music event and four smaller 
events each year. The intention is also to host the events within a six month 
period, ideally during the summer months. 
 
Following questions relating to an event management plan – the applicant 
confirmed this would be produced and by an experienced team but that 
currently a plan was not in place. An experienced events team and traffic team 
are in however in place. 
 
In relation to security, the applicant confirmed that security would be on site 
27/7 and would be SIA qualified as is standard. They also confirmed that first 
responders and a welfare team would be on site during events. 
 
Members then queried the emergency access; it was clarified that this would be 
separate from public access. 
 
Members were concerned that some of the applicant’s plans (such as event 
management plan) were not included with the application. 
In response the applicants advised that the application had all the adequate 
information as required and they had consulted the Licencing team prior to 
making the application. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer then clarified to members the issues and 
delays with the application and acknowledged this was due to Officers rather 
than the applicant. 
 
The applicant then explained the history of the application. The original 
premises Licence was held by Concentrix Design and as the application to 
transfer this application to them would have be refused by Police and Cumbria 
County Council, this is why the License was surrendered and a new premises 
Licence application had been made. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer advised that before the application was 
made, she provided advice on the implications of both a new application and a 
transfer/variation of the existing license. Clarifying that the decision to proceed 
with a new application was a decision made by the applicant. 
 
The applicant stated that they disagreed with this statement, as they believe 
they were advised to make a new application. 
 
The history of the existing premises licence was then explained to members, 
including confirmation that the existing licence could only be held by a 
professional event management company; this has been the case since 2017. 
 

Page 14



The panel then heard the representations from residents who had submitted 
their objections. 
 
Objector IP01 had concerns over noise, car parking, public nuisance, public 
safety, theft and lack of sufficient lighting at the site. The objector based these 
observations on previous festivals/events held at and in the vicinity of the 
application site. 
 
Objector IP02 advised that they had negative experiences with previous 
festivals in the area of the application site; specifically they shared issues with 
public nuisance and disorder, traffic and the close proximity of the site to their 
dwelling. The objector also had concerns for the safety and security of the 
public and that the licence application was too vague. Objector IP02 also 
suggested some conditions to mitigate concerns including restricting the 
number of festivals, excluding winter festivals, restricting access from Quarry 
Lonning and that the licence should not be transferrable.  
 
Objector IP03 also shared previous experiences of festivals in the area, stating 
that they have a significant impact on daily life. The objector presented 
maps/plans to members asking why the festival had to be so close to his 
residence. In relation to property, the objector advised that the number of 
festivals in close proximity to his residence will have an adverse effect on his 
property value. The timing of the festivals was also a concern as currently no 
dates have been provided for any event. Further to these concerns the objector 
felt that the 3am finish was too late, and that the application lacked a detailed 
event and noise management plan. 
The objector went on to explain that they had concerns over crime and disorder, 
drug and alcohol abuse and the lack of public engagement shown by the 
applicants. 
 
The applicants provided a response to each objector, Mr Wise also clarified that 
this application is not for Solfest but for a new non-profit community event which 
will be properly managed. Mr Wise also explained that his involvement in 
previous Solfest events was purely related to infrastructure, and he did not 
make any decisions. 
 
The applicants further explained that in relation to traffic, sufficient access and 
egress is provided as well as adequate parking spaces. The applicant also 
clarified that to improve safety and reduce public nuisance, pyrotechnics would 
not be permitted on the premises, and that a duty manager contact would be 
made available for residents. The applicant’s also clarified previous comments 
in relation to security advising of the presence of SIA trained security personnel 
and reminded the objectors to call emergency services as usual if they observe 
criminal activity. 
 
The applicants advised that detailed plans such as noise management and 
event planning would be included prior to the event; however for this application 
they provided the information that was required. It was also confirmed that the 
proposed events would not be held on the same date as other events/festivals.  
 

Page 15



The applicant however could not confirm the dates of the events or guarantee 
that at least 200 meters would separate neighbouring properties from the 
application site. 
 
The sale of alcohol would be managed with the challenge 25 policy and that 
intoxicated attendees would be remain on site for their own safety. 
 
Following the applicants responses to the objectors, the Licensing and 
Compliance Officer explained to members that any alleged poor management 
of previous festivals cannot be considered within this application.  
 
All parties then had the opportunity to ask any further questions and to 
summarise any points they had raised. 
 
The applicants reiterated that any negative experiences of Solfest should not be 
considered with this new application; however the applicants assured that any 
festival held will be more responsible than Solfest. 
 
All parties were then asked to leave the meeting for the panel to consider the 
application at a later date. 
 
The Panel reconvened and considered all information presented to it in the 
officers report, the additional papers provided and the representations provided 
at the meeting. 
 
Councillor Allan Daniels moved the motion to refuse the application for a the 
premises licence 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Elaine Lynch 
 
A vote followed, 3 voted in favour of the motion, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Resolved 
 
To refuse the application for a premises licence 
 
Reason/Decision 
 
In reaching its decision, the Panel considered the Statement of Licensing 
Policy, the Licensing Act 2003, the Regulations made thereunder and the 
Guidance issued by the Secretary of State under s182 of that Act.  In 
discharging its functions, the Panel did so with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives which are the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the 
prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from harm. 
 
The Panel sought to balance the interests of the applicant and the interested 
parties in making their decision. 
 

Page 16



Having considered all of the evidence put before it, the Panel has decided to 
refuse to grant the Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of 
Tarnside Farm, Tarns, Silloth, Wigton, CA7 4NQ. 
 
The Panel’s decision was based on issues raised concerning the prevention of 
crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of public nuisance and the 
protection of children from harm. 
 
The Panel heard from the applicant who asked that the following points be 
considered: 
 

 A festival has been held on their land for 15 years. 

 That the Panel does not take into account what has gone before 

regarding Solfest as this is a separate festival. 

 That they essentially hope to have one large event and four smaller 

events.  The applicant stated that the larger event would be a music 

event and that the four smaller events would host less than 500 people, 

an example of which would be a dog show, and that these could 

effectively be dealt with by way of temporary event notices (TENs). 

 That they have an experienced team of people including Ben Parkinson 

and Helen Blake.  The applicant stated Ms Blake has had extensive 

involvement with festivals, mainly around traffic management. 

 That they are very involved with the local community, e.g. the Rotary, 

being a governor at a local school and in a previous role as PCSO for 

Silloth.  The applicant stated that they helped to organise Silloth Pride 

and that they have organised many events. 

 That they intend the larger event to be a family friendly festival. 

 That they have an Event Team and a Traffic Management Team. 

 They do not yet have an Event Management Plan (EMP) in place but 

have agreed with the police and Environmental Health that they will work 

towards it. 

 That they intend to have a qualified SIA team.  They do not have 

numbers yet, but intend the team to work 24 hours per day during the 

events. 

 That they intend to have a traffic management team and plan. 

 That they intend to have PAT testing. 

 That they intend to have a phone number for complaints. 

 That they intend to have sound monitoring. 

 That they intend to have ‘welfare people’. 

 That they intend to have First Responders. 

 That they have a safety lane, roadways, hard standing and four exits 

already. 

 That they are not Solfest and that they think that Solfest was completely 

mismanaged. 

 
The Panel considered the issues raised by residents IP01, IP02 and IP03, and 
considered only the matters raised by them which linked to the Licensing 
Objectives, for example they did not take into account the impact on house 
prices.  

Page 17



 
The Panel heard from local resident IP01 who expressed concern about noise, 
people walking along a 60mph road from Aspatria to Silloth, cars parking away 
from the site in lanes nearby, the fact that the area is badly lit, and the fact that 
they had concerns about the safety of their property because during a previous 
event in the proximity, they had had two chairs stolen from their property which 
was unreported. 
 
The Panel heard from local resident IP02 who expressed concern about noise 
from people and vehicles during set up, clean up and during the festival itself, 
issues with previous events whereby people urinated on their property, a young 
person collapsed in their garden, people knocked on the door, someone was in 
their garden, people were playing ‘knock and nash’, the fact that they do not feel 
that they can leave their property for the weekend, they do not feel their 
property is safe, they would like the numbers restricted for the events, they 
would not be happy with any events over the festive period and that they would 
only want access from the B3501, not Quarry Lonning or the field opposite 
Sycamore House.  Concerns were raised regarding the four exits mentioned.  
Resident IP02 also said that they did not want it to be a transferable licence, 
that they need plenty of notice of the dates so that they know where to put crops 
and stock, they want an official channel for communication with residents, want 
a 200m clear space between their property and the boundary, wants no 
pyrotechnics, wants a restriction of music to 12am, and wants regular meetings 
with them and Councillors. 
 
The Panel heard from local resident IP03 who expressed concern about public 
nuisance by way of noise until 3am, the fact that there was no clarity regarding 
when the larger event was to be held, whether the larger event would be held at 
the same time as another event, the fact that they felt housebound when 
previous events have been on in the proximity because they are worried about 
the safety of their property, why there was no EMP in place, who was on the 
Events Management Team (EMT), how it could be that the residents could not 
scrutinise the EMP, whether there would be regular noise monitoring before and 
during the festival, whether they would reduce the time from 3am to 12am for 
music, whether the Licensing Authority could insist that the licence is held by a 
Professional Events Management Company, whether it was appropriate that the 
proposed Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) had not been a DPS 
previously, whether there would be any limits on the amount of alcohol served, 
whether there would be a drugs dog, whether there could be 24 hour policing, 
what the applicant would do if people were intoxicated and whether they could 
move the site boundary away from properties. 
 
Other concerns were raised around whether a separate festival could be held at 
the same time.  The Panel must consider the current application on its own 
merits and did so. 
  
The Panel took into account the applicant’s responses to the concerns raised by 
the residents: 
 

 The applicant stated that they would not reduce the time of the licence 

from 3am. 

Page 18



 The applicant stated that they could not specify dates of the events, but 

that they would be some time in the summer months. 

 The applicant stated that they could not guarantee that they would not 

hold an event over the August Bank Holiday.   

 The applicant stated that they would not hold an event at the same time 

as another one was on in close proximity. 

 Quarry Lonning would only be used for emergency vehicles. 

 The applicant said they could not guarantee a 200m clear space 

between the residents’ properties and the boundary of the plan for the 

premises licence. 

 The applicant will not allow pyrotechnics or fires. 

 The applicant stated that he had not had any kind of management role 

and had not been involved with making any decisions for Solfest, and 

had been involved purely with infrastructure.  He also stated that he 

owned the land.  Following the hearing, additional information was 

received regarding the applicant’s role with the Solfest Committee, which 

was responded to by the applicant.  The Panel has considered both the 

information submitted and the response from the applicant. 

 The applicant would have responsible drinks promotions and Challenge 

21 and Challenge 25 policies in place. 

 Policing would not be 24 hours, but security would. 

 They could not guarantee a drugs dog. 

 If people were intoxicated, they would keep them on site for their own 

safety. 

 The applicant talked about amnesty bins for drug removal and storage. 

 The applicant did not want to be considered as having anything to do 

with the alleged mismanagement of the Solfest event.  The Panel is 

mindful of the limited role the applicant had in respect of Solfest. 

 
The Panel took into consideration the work that had been carried out in liaising 
with the Responsible Authorities and the proposed conditions which had been 
subsequently agreed by the Police and Environmental Health. 
 
In making its decision, the Panel considered all of the representations made 
and the following reasons are given for refusing to grant the premises licence: 
 

 The application does not contain sufficient detail to persuade the Panel 

that the Licensing Objectives could be promoted. 

 There is no associated paperwork in the form of an Event Management 

Plan or any of the documents that the Panel would expect to see with 

this.  Whilst the Panel would not necessarily expect to see completed 

documents at this stage, it would expect to see a far higher level of detail 

around the organisation than has been presented. 

 The applicant who advised that he intends to be the Designated 

Premises Supervisor has not previously held this role and therefore has 

limited experience of such a role. 

 A similar event was held in the proximity which was reviewed on two 

occasions and ultimately resulted in the requirement for a professional 

events management company to hold the licence.  Whilst the Panel is 

Page 19



not attributing any mismanagement of the other event to the current 

applicant, events of this size on the current land have not been without 

issue in the past and in this case, less information has been given as to 

how to mitigate any risks. 

 The Panel does not have the confidence that the application in its current 

form would promote the Licensing Objectives, as it has very little detail 

and a lack of specificity. 

 There is no traffic management plan in place, which does not promote 

the public safety objective. 

 To grant the licence in its current form, there is no detail as to the 

number and size of events that could be held.  When considering 

whether a condition could be applied as to the number and size of 

events, the Panel felt that there was insufficient detail as to when these 

events would be held. 

 There is no certainty as to when the dates of the events will be, or 

whether they will be held at the same time as other events.   

 The Panel would expect that the EMP and other associated documents 

would be firmly in hand, if not finalised by this stage. 

 Whilst conditions have been agreed with the Responsible Authorities, the 

Panel felt that there was insufficient information presented about the 

nature of the events to ascertain whether these would be appropriate.  

There are also concerns about the level of detail in the conditions 

themselves. 

 There was no clear site plan as to where each part of the site would be, 

e.g. camping, music, parking, toilets etc.  Consequently, it is impossible 

to determine whether the licensing objectives would be met in respect of 

issues such as noise, safety, protection of children etc. 

 Whilst the applicant proposed to have 24 hour security, there is no detail 

as to the number of SIA officers who would be present or information 

about their roles. 

 There are concerns from a public nuisance perspective about the level of 

detail in the plan presented with the application, both in respect of 

proximity to the residents’ premises and in respect of traffic 

management. 

 The Panel considered carefully whether the application could be granted 

with the imposition of a number of stringent conditions, however due to 

the lack of detail contained within the application (as outlined above) and 

in particular the limited information about the nature of the events and 

certainty as to dates, the Panel was of the view that the licensing 

objectives would not adequately be promoted. 

 

Any party to the proceedings who is aggrieved by the decision of the authority 
has the right to appeal to the Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving 
written notification of the decision. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

The meeting closed at 1.00 pm 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



At a meeting of the Licensing Panel held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, 
Workington on Friday 14 February 2020 at 3.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Peter Gaston Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Alan Smith  
 
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 

 
358. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Grainger was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

359. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

360. Questions  
 
None received 
 

361. Application for Film Classification under the Licensing Act 2003  
 
The Licencing and Compliance Officer introduced the item which was to 
consider and determine an application to classify a Film under the Licensing Act 
2003. 
 
The film in question was ‘The Last Climb: Eric Jones’  
 
The title had not been classified by the BBFC and it was the responsibility of the 
licensing authority to do so. 
 
The panel had viewed the film in its entirety.  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer clarified to the panel the licensing 
objectives and debate ensued. 
 
Councillor Gaston moved the motion to classify the film as 12A. 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Smith 
 
A vote followed, 3 voted in favour of the motion, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried 
 
Decision 

Page 23



 
‘The Last Climb: Eric Jones’ is certified as Universal 12A 

 
Reasons for the Decision 
 
The Licensing Panel resolved that the following classification be given: 

 

‘The Last Climb: Eric Jones’ – certificate 12A – suitable only for 12 years and 

over.  No one younger than 12 may see a 12A film in a cinema unless 

accompanied by an adult. 

  

In reaching its decision, the Licensing Committee viewed the film and 

considered the information set out in the report by the Licensing and 

Compliance Officer. The Committee had regard to the British Board of Film 

Classification Guidelines. 

  

The Licensing Committee had regard to the four licensing objectives under the 

Licensing Act 2003 and the Council’s Licensing Policy. In particular, the 

Committee considered as its overriding objective the protection of children from 

harm. 

  

In addition, the Committee considered the Secretary of State’s revised guidance 

under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 specifically but not limited to 

paragraphs 2.22 (protection of children from harm), 10.59 to 10.60 (exhibition of 

films) and 14.62 (children and cinemas). 

  

The Committee sought to balance the promotion of the licensing objectives 
while seeking to ensure the film reached the widest audience appropriate. The 
Committee found when considering the BBFC Guidance that the issue of 
dangerous behaviour which young children may be liable to copy was the most 
important factor to consider, therefore the rating of 12A was the most 
appropriate.  
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 3.25 pm 
 

Page 24



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber - Allerdale 
House, Workington on Friday 13 September 2019 at 10.00 am 
 
Members 
  
Councillor Mary Bainbridge Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Alan Smith Councillor Will Wilkinson 
Councillor Lynda Williams  
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine and J Morgan 

 
159. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Grainger was elected chair for the ensuing meeting 
 

160. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

161. Questions  
 
None received 
 

162. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for licence which does not meet the 
criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Applicant was in attendance at the meeting. 
 
The Application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The application to transfer the vehicle was received on 4 September 2019. 
When the application was considered it was found that the licence that had 
been issued to PX64 JVE was invalid. The applicant was now required to make 
an application for a new hackney carriage vehicle licence. 
 
The vehicle was previously licensed under HCV 653. That licence was last 
issued 3 October 2017 to expire on 2 October 2018. It was transferred to 
another operator on the 1 May 2018. Unfortunately due to an error when 
entering that licence on the licensing system, the licence was issued from 3 
October 2018 to expire on 2 October 2019. Hackney carriage vehicle licences 
cannot be issued for any period longer than one year. The licence should have 
been issued from 30 August 2018 to expire on 29 August 2019. 
 
The vehicle turned four years old on 30 September 2018. Due to the error on 
the licence the vehicle does not have a current licence to transfer to the 

Page 25



applicant. It falls outside the Vehicle Age Policy as it is over four years of age, 
so it is not possible to grant a new licence with delegated powers. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to delegate powers to Officers to grant a 
hackney carriage vehicle licence to the applicant for a period of one year if all 
requirements of the application were satisfied.  
 
Councillor Wilkinson entered the meeting. 
 
The applicant then gave their representations and answered questions from 
members.  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant. The Panel also considered relevant legislation, and the 
Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
Councillor Smith moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for 12 months. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Bainbridge 
 
A vote was taken on the motion to grant the hackney carriage vehicle licence, 4 
voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions.  
 
Councillor Wilkinson did not take part in the vote. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decisions/Reasons 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, representations from 
the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation and the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for one 
year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance Officer 
for any subsequent renewal.  Although the vehicle fell outside the Vehicle Age 
Policy, it was been outside the control of the applicant.  The applicant had done 
everything required to ensure that the vehicle had the relevant paperwork, 
which is now all in place.  
 
If the applicant was aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to 
the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

Page 26



The meeting closed at 10.30 am 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber - Allerdale 
House, Workington on Friday 4 October 2019 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Carmel Bell Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride Councillor Alan Smith 
Councillor Will Wilkinson  
 
Staff Present 
 
C Fleming, D Fletcher and L Jardine 
 

 
189. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Grainger was elected chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

190. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

191. Questions  
 
None received 
 

192. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for licence which does not meet the 
criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Applicant was in attendance at the meeting. 
 
The Application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agrees to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was previously licensed as a hackney carriage vehicle but the 
licence expired and without a valid renewal application it is considered as a new 
application. 
 
The vehicle held the private hire licence which expired on 27 July 
2019. It had been a licensed vehicle since 2006. Prior to 30 April 2019 it was 
licensed as a hackney carriage vehicle by a different operator. The renewal 
application was not received in full until 1 August 2019. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence in accordance with the 
Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 

Page 29



The applicant then gave their representations and answered questions from 
members. 
 
The applicant admitted they were new to the application process and accepted 
responsibility, admitting that it was an internal error on their part. They also 
advised that following the engineer’s report, any repairs were carried out 
immediately and that going forward this issue would not occur again. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor Kirkbride moved the motion to grant the hackney vehicle licence for 
one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Wilkinson 
 
A vote followed the motion, 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 

Members considered the application, the officer’s report, representations from 

the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 

legislation and the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 

 

The Panel decided to grant the licence for one year, delegating the power 

thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance Officer for any subsequent renewal.  

 

Members noted that the works required on the vehicle were completed 

satisfactorily and the MOT test certificate, Council Testing Station Certificate 

and the Independent Engineer’s Report were produced at the first available 

opportunity after the expiry of the licence.  

 

The panel had exercised its discretion based upon the representations the 

applicant made before them today. It advised the applicant that public safety 

remains very much at the forefront of its decision making, and that the the 

suitability of vehicles for the transportation of the travelling public should be 

taken very seriously by all proprietors.  

 

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 

Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 

Page 30



 
193. To consider an application for a Private Hire Vehicle  

 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for licence which does not meet the 
criteria of Allerdale Borough Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Applicant was in attendance at the meeting. 
 
The Application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agrees to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was previously licensed as a hackney carriage vehicle but the 
licence expired and without a valid renewal application it is considered as a new 
application. 
 
The vehicle held the private hire licence which expired on 28 July 
2019. It had been a licensed vehicle since 2011. Prior to 30 April 2018 it was 
licensed as a hackney carriage vehicle by a different operator. The renewal 
application was not received in full until 1 August 2019. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence in accordance with the 
Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The applicant then gave their representations and answered questions from 
members. 
 
The applicant admitted they were new to the application process and accepted 
responsibility, admitting that it was an internal error on their part. They also 
advised that following the engineer’s report, any repairs were carried out 
immediately and that going forward this issue would not occur again. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor Wilkinson moved the motion to grant the hackney vehicle licence for 
one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Kirkbride 
 
A vote followed the motion, 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 

Page 31



The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 

Members considered the application, the officer’s report, representations from 

the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 

legislation and the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 

 

The Panel decided to grant the licence for one year, delegating the power 

thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance Officer for any subsequent renewal.  

 

Members noted that the works required on the vehicle were completed 

satisfactorily and the MOT test certificate, Council Testing Station Certificate 

and the Independent Engineer’s Report were produced at the first available 

opportunity after the expiry of the licence. The members appreciated that some 

of the delays were compacted by availability of parts to enable the repairs. 

 

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 

Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

194. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant was in attendance at the meeting. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel. The 
applicant had held a hackney carriage driver licence with Allerdale Borough 
Council since 24 August 2017. During the renewal application process, it was 
revealed that the applicant had endorsements on their driving licence. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
The applicant provided his representations and answered questions from the 
panel. The applicant advised that all the endorsements on his licence were 
awarded when driving in his personal capacity, not when working as a Hackney 
Carriage Driver, the applicant also went on to explain that his taxi is tracked by 
his current employer. 
 
The applicant also wanted the panel to consider the fact that an endorsement 
on his licence was awarded whilst on route to visit his injured son in hospital. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant. The Panel also considered relevant legislation, and the 
Council’s policy on the relevance of criminal convictions. 

Page 32



 
Councillor Wilkinson moved the motion to refuse the hackney carriage driver 
licence applications as per officer’s recommendations 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Bell. 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 4 voted in favour, 1 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
 
 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Regulatory Panel considered the application, the officer’s report, 
representations from the applicant and advice from officers. 
 
The Panel also considered the relevant legislation and the Council’s policy on 
the relevance of criminal convictions.  
 
The decision has been made in conjunction with the overriding objective of 
protecting the safety of the public. 
 
This decision was referred to the Licensing Regulatory Panel in accordance 
with paragraph 36.6.3 of the policy on the relevance of criminal convictions 
where an applicant has 8 or more current penalty points on their DVLA driving 
licence. 
 
The licensing panel decided to refuse to grant the licence on the basis that it is 
not satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s 
licence under section 59(1)(a)(i) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and in accordance with the officer’s recommendation. 
 
The offence committed by the applicant on 25 August 2018 showed a complete 
disregard for public safety and posed a significant danger and risk to other road 
users. Whilst the panel considered the circumstances presented by the 
applicant that lead to the offence, it remains the duty of the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to uphold the licensing objectives and ensure the safety of the 
travelling public. The applicants DVLA licence record showed another offence in 
December 2017 and the applicant made reference to an earlier offence which 
was removed from their record by way of a speed awareness course, made 
available for a first offence, showing, in accordance with paragraph 16.7 of the 
policy, a pattern of offending. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision 

Page 33



 
195. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence 

(Renewal)  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant was not in attendance at the meeting. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel. As part 
of the applicant’s application, the applicant subscribes to the Disclosure and 
Barring Service certificate update service which revealed information relevant to 
the application. The officer also advised that the applicant had endorsements on 
their driving licence.  
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer then left the meeting while the panel 
considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant. The Panel also considered relevant legislation, and the 
Council’s policy on the relevance of criminal convictions 
 
Councillor Wilkinson moved the motion to refuse the hackney carriage driver 
licence application as per officer’s recommendations 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Bell. 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Regulatory Panel considered the application, the officer’s report, 
and advice from officers. 
 
The Panel also considered the relevant legislation and the Council’s policy on 
the relevance of criminal convictions.  
 
The decision has been made in conjunction with the overriding objective of 
protecting the safety of the public. 
 

Page 34



This decision was been referred to the Licensing Regulatory Panel in 
accordance with paragraph 43.3 of the policy on the relevance of criminal 
convictions. 
 
The licensing panel decided to refuse to grant the licence on the basis that it is 
not satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s 
licence under section 59(1)(a)(i) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and in accordance with the officer’s recommendation. 
 
In accordance with paragraph 43.1 of the policy, an application containing 
dishonesty offences such will only be considered to be sufficiently mitigated 
after a period of 10 years, as long as no further offences are committed. The 
panel felt that they had not been provided with any mitigation which put them in 
a position whereby they could depart from policy. The offence is sufficiently 
serious for the panel to feel that the applicant is not a fit and proper person. The 
applicant’s record also shows a history of offending which further compacts this.  
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 

The meeting closed at 4.30 pm 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber - Allerdale 
House, Workington on Thursday 19 December 2019 at 10.00 am 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Ron Munby MBE 
Councillor Alan Smith Councillor Will Wilkinson 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Elaine Lynch 
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 

 
287. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Alan Smith was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

288. Declaration of Interests  
 
None Declared 
 

289. Questions  
 
None Received 
 

290. To consider an application to Hackney Carriage Driver Licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant was in attendance at the meeting. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel. The 
applicant had nine penalty points on their driving licence. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
The applicant and his wife then gave their representations and answered 
questions from members.  
 
The applicant explained that the offence of ‘Fail to give information relating to 
the identification of the driver/rider of a vehicle when required’ was due to his 
wife borrowing his car without his knowledge and has since applied to have the 
case opened and a hearing is pending. The applicant also advised he has 
received a repayment of the payments he made towards the fine of £800. 
 

Page 37



The applicant’s wife explained that she was driving at the time of the incident 
and that she was suffering from anxiety and depression. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, the letter and 
representations from the applicant. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, and the Council’s policy on Determining Suitability of Applicants and 
Licensees in the Hackney/Private Hire Trade. 
 
Councillor Daniels moved the motion to refuse to grant the hackney carriage 
driver licence  
 
This was seconded by Councillor Munby 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 4 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Panel has considered the application, officer’s report, the 
representation from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel has also 
considered all relevant legislation and the Council’s policy on Determining 
Suitability of Applicants and Licensees in the Hackney/Private Hire Trade. 
 
The licensing panel decided to: 
 
Refuse to grant the licence on the basis that it was not satisfied that the 
applicant was a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence under section 
51(1)(a)(i) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and in 
accordance with the officer’s recommendation.   
 
The overriding objective is to protect the safety of the public.   
 
This application has come before the panel as per the Council’s policy on 
Determining Suitability of Applicants and Licensees in the Hackney/Private Hire 
Trade, given that the applicant has nine current penalty points on their driving 
licence.  The policy states that an application must be referred to the panel 
where an applicant has seven or more penalty points. 
 
The policy states that where an applicant has 7 or more points on their DVLA 
licence for minor traffic or similar offences, a licence will not be granted until at 
least 5 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. A 
major traffic or vehicle related offence is one which is not covered above and 

Page 38



also any offence which resulted in injury to any person or damage to any 
property (including vehicles). It also includes driving without insurance or any 
offence connected with motor insurance. Where an applicant has a conviction 
for a major traffic offence or similar offence, a licence will not be granted until at 
least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. 
 
The Panel took into account the mitigation provided by the applicant and his 
wife in respect of the offence of ‘Fail to give information relating to identification 
of the driver/rider of a vehicle when required’.  The Panel also took into account 
the fact that the applicant asked that this matter be reopened by the court and 
that a hearing is pending.  However, based on the facts presented to the Panel, 
the presence of the nine points which exist on the applicant’s licence at the 
current time, the Panel cannot be satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper 
person to hold a driver’s licence.   
 
In making its decision, the Panel listened to the applicants representations and 
the information have provided.  We sought to balance the applicant’s interests 
against the overriding objective to protect the safety of the public.  
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 11.15 am 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber, Allerdale 
House on Tuesday 24 December 2019 at 10.00 am 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Mary Bainbridge Councillor Peter Gaston 
Councillor Peter Kendall Councillor Ron Munby MBE 
Councillor Will Wilkinson  
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 
 

 
291. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Will Wilkinson was elected chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

292. Declaration of Interests  
 
5. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle. 
 Councillor Peter Gaston; Other Interest; Applicants son has been a 
customer of his driving school. 
 
5. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle. 
 Councillor Peter Kendall; Other Interest; Knows applicants representative 
(who was in attendance). 
 
5. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle. 
 Councillor Will Wilkinson; Other Interest; Has used applicants taxi 
company. 
 

293. Questions  
 
None Received 
 

294. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for licence which does not meet the 
criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Applicant was not in attendance but two representatives from his company 
were in attendance. 
 
The Application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 

Page 41



The vehicle was previously licensed as a hackney carriage vehicle, but the 
licence expired and without a valid renewal application it is considered as a new 
application. 
 
The vehicle held the private hire licence which expired on 14 December 2019. It 
had been a licensed vehicle since 2013. The application to renew the vehicle 
was received on 9 December 2019. 
 
The applicant had made an appointment to licence the vehicle on 11 
December 2019. The appointment was cancelled on the 11 December 2019 as 
the vehicle was not roadworthy and could not be presented for test at the 
Council’s approved testing station. 
 
The vehicle was presented for test and a MOT at the Council’s approved testing 
station on 12 December 2019. The vehicle failed to meet the requirements and 
both tests were marked as a fail. The vehicle did not have a valid MOT 
certificate as this had expired on the 10 December 2019. 
 
The vehicle was presented for test and a MOT at the Council’s approved testing 
station on 16 December 2019. The vehicle passed both tests. 
 
The applicant was informed that they could not make a renewal application but 
had to make a new application to licence the vehicle as the vehicle licence had 
expired on 14 December. The application was before the panel to consider if 
the vehicle is exempt from the vehicle age policy. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 
The applicant then gave their representations and answered questions from 
members. 
 
The applicant advised that delays with the engineer’s report caused this issue to 
occur and that he had started the renewal process before the vehicle licence 
had expired. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor Kendall moved the motion to grant the hackney vehicle licence for 
one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Gaston 
 
A vote followed the motion, 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 

Page 42



The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons  
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, representations from 
the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation and the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for one 
year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance Officer 
for any subsequent renewal.  Although the vehicle falls outside the Vehicle Age 
Policy, the vehicle is now considered to meet the conditions outlined in section 
3 of the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy.  The Panel considered the fact that the 
applicant stated that there was a significant delay between the engineer’s report 
being carried out and the report being received.  This meant that it was difficult 
to get the vehicle tested and then re-tested before the expiry date.  The 
applicant done everything required to ensure that the vehicle has the relevant 
paperwork, which is now all in place. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 10.50 am 
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber - Allerdale 
House, Workington on Monday 10 February 2020 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Carmel Bell Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Peter Kendall Councillor Ron Munby MBE 
Councillor Will Wilkinson  
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Peter Gaston 
 
Staff Present 
 
C Fleming, D Fletcher and L Jardine 
 

 
334. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Kendall was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting 
 

335. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

336. Questions  
 
None received 
 

337. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for licence which does not meet the 
criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Applicant was in attendance. 
 
The Application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was previously licensed as a hackney carriage vehicle, but the 
licence expired and without a valid renewal application it is considered as a new 
application. 
 
The vehicle held the private hire licence which expired on 19 December 2019. It 
had been a licensed vehicle since 2018. The application to renew the vehicle 
was received on 8 January 2020. 
 
The applicant had made contact prior to the vehicle’s expiry date to say that due 
to a family emergency he had been forced to travel outside the UK and was not 
able to renew on time. The applicant has since provided travel documents to 

Page 45



show flights which indicate he was out of the country between 21 October 2019 
and 20 December 2019. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 
The applicant then gave their representations and answered questions from 
members. 
 
The applicant advised that delays with his application was due to a family 
emergency which meant he had to leave the UK until 20 December 2019. 
 
He then explained that he could not make an appointment to renew until the 
next appointment, which was 8 January 2020. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor Wilkinson moved the motion to grant the hackney vehicle licence for 
one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Horsley 
 
A vote followed the motion, 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 

The Licensing Regulatory Panel considered the application, the officer’s report, 

representations from the applicant and advice from officers, and considered 

relevant legislation and the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 

 

The Panel decided to grant the delegated authority to the Licensing and 

Compliance Officer to grant the hackney carriage vehicle licence for a period of 

one year.  

 

Due to the extenuating circumstances, being a family emergency, the applicant 

was not able to complete the necessary tests prior to the vehicle’s expiry date, 

although the Panel was satisfied that the applicant done everything within their 

control to remedy this at the first available opportunity and felt that the licence 

can be granted on this basis. 

 

Page 46



The panel also took the opportunity to emphasise that members exercised their 

discretion based upon the representations the applicant made before them and 

public safety remains very much at the forefront of its decision making, the 

suitability of vehicles for the transportation of the travelling public should be 

taken very seriously by all proprietors.  

 

The applicant was advised that if they are aggrieved by the decision, they can 

appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 

 
 
 
 

338. To consider an application to Hackney Carriage Driver Licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant was in attendance at the meeting. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel. The 
applicant had not provided a new DBS check with his renewal application. 
Although the applicant applied for a new check before his expiry date, the check 
was not returned until after the 28 days allowed to renew an expired licence.  
 
It was also clarified to members that had the DBS check came back on time, 
this renewal application would have been granted. 
  
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
The applicant gave their representations and answered questions from 
members.  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, applicant 
representations The Panel has also considered the relevant legislation and the 
Council’s policies on Hackney Carriage licence applications.  
 
Councillor Wilkinson moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage driver 
licence  
 
This was seconded by Councillor Horsley 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 

Page 47



The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Regulatory Panel considered the application, the officer’s report, 
and the representations that the applicant made. The Panel also considered the 
relevant legislation and the Council’s policies on Hackney Carriage licence 
applications.  
 
The Panel decided to grant the delegated authority to the Licensing and 
Compliance Officer to grant the hackney carriage licence for a period of up to 
one year, the panel considered the applicant to be a fit and proper person to 
hold such a licence. 
 
The circumstances, namely a significant delay with the DBS certification 
service, which prevented the applicant from being able to renew their licence, 
was out of both the applicants control and that of the Licensing Authority; 
therefore the panel see it right that the licence is granted. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 

339. To consider an application to Hackney Carriage Driver Licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant was not in attendance at the meeting. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel. The 
applicant had not provided a new DBS check with his renewal application. 
Although the applicant applied for a new check before his expiry date, the check 
was not returned until after the 28 days allowed to renew an expired licence.  
 
It was also clarified to members that had the DBS check came back on time, 
this renewal application would have been granted. 
  
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
The applicant gave their representations and answered questions from 
members.  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 

Page 48



Members considered the application and the officer’s report. The Panel has also 
considered the relevant legislation and the Council’s policies on Hackney 
Carriage licence applications.  
 
Councillor Bell moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage driver licence  
 
This was seconded by Councillor Munby 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Regulatory Panel considered the application, the officer’s report, 
and the representations that the applicant made. The Panel also considered the 
relevant legislation and the Council’s policies on Hackney Carriage licence 
applications.  
 
The Panel decided to grant the delegated authority to the Licensing and 
Compliance Officer to grant the hackney carriage licence for a period of up to 
one year, the panel considered the applicant to be a fit and proper person to 
hold such a licence. 
 
The circumstances, namely a significant delay with the DBS certification 
service, which prevented the applicant from being able to renew their licence, 
was out of both the applicants control and that of the Licensing Authority; 
therefore the panel see it right that the licence is granted. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

340. To consider an application to Hackney Carriage Driver Licence  
 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant and his employer were in attendance at the meeting.  

Page 49



 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel.  
 
The applicant made a new application to be licensed as a hackney carriage 
driver in December 2019. The application form asks the applicant if they have 
ever had a licence suspended or revoked. The applicant declared a revocation 
from 2017. 
 
The licence was revoked in 2017 as Cumbria Constabulary had provided the 
Senior Licensing Officer with information regarding an investigation. The 
timeline given for the incidents was between January and February 2017. 
Further information was also supplied by Social Services.   
 
The applicant was invited to discuss his application with the Senior Licensing 
Officer and the Legal and Licensing Manager. This took place on the 9 January 
2020. Following the meeting with the applicant, Allerdale Borough Council 
requested further information from Cumbria Constabulary. 
 
Following the meeting on the 9 January 2020 the Senior Licensing Officer and 
the Legal and Licensing Manager determined that the application should be 
heard by the Licensing Regulatory Panel due to the information received from 
Cumbria Constabulary on the 10 January 2020 and the information provided by 
the applicant.   
 
The Legal and Licensing Officer confirmed to the panel that they had not had 
any prior involvement in this application. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. The information 
revealed during the application process shows that although no further action 
was taken against the applicant in relation to the alleged offences in 2017 there 
was a failure in judgement. This was at a time when the applicant was a 
licensed hackney carriage driver. 
 
The applicant gave their representations and answered questions from 
members.  
 
The applicant explained that he has been employed in the care industry since 
2017 working closely with vulnerable adults. 
 
The applicant went on to provide his account of the alleged incident for which 
he was investigated, clarifying that he was not charged with any offence and 
that no further action was taken. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the representations from the applicant and 
his employer and the officer’s report. The Panel also considered the relevant 
legislation and the Council’s policies on Hackney Carriage licence applications.  
 

Page 50



Councillor Wilkinson moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage driver 
licence  
 
This was seconded by Councillor Horsley 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Regulatory Panel has considered the application, the officer’s 
report and the representations made them. The Panel also considered the 
relevant legislation and the Council’s policy on the relevance of criminal 
convictions. 
 
The Panel decided to grant delegated authority to the Licensing and 
Compliance Officer to grant the licence on the basis that they are satisfied the 
applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence under section 59(1) 
of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, subject to the 
necessary verifications for the right to work in the UK. 
 
The representations that the applicant made before the Panel provided 
sufficient reassurance that the applicant does not pose a risk to public safety or 
to the travelling public; the information provided to the panel showed that there 
was insufficient evidence for the accusation to be substantiated, this is 
supported by the police’s decision not to charge the applicant. The panel were 
given additional reassurance by the fact that this accusation did not have any 
adverse impact on the applicants employment as a support worker working with 
vulnerable people in close circumstances, nor did this cause any concern for 
the applicants employer after the accusation was detailed to them. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 

The meeting closed at 4.55 pm 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber - Allerdale 
House, Workington on Friday 14 February 2020 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Peter Gaston Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Daniel Horsley Councillor Elaine Lynch 
Councillor Alan Smith  
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, L Jardine, G McDonald and J Morgan 
 

 
353. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Grainger was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

354. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

355. Questions  
 
None received 
 

356. To consider an application for a Private Hire Vehicle  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for licence which does not meet the 
criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Applicant was not in attendance. 
 
The Application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was previously licensed as a hackney carriage vehicle, but the 
licence expired and without a valid renewal application it is considered as a new 
application. 
 
The vehicle held the private hire licence which expired on 19 December 2019. It 
had been a licensed vehicle since 2012. The application to renew the vehicle 
was received on 27 November 2020, however the renewal application did not 
contain the following documents, 
 
MOT Test Certificate  
Council Testing Station Certificate  
Proof of Service History 
Independent Engineer’s Report 

Page 53



 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 
The applicant provided his representations in writing which was read out to the 
panel. 
 
The applicant advised that delays from the testing station had caused his 
licence to expire, the circumstances of which were out of control. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer then left the meeting while the panel 
considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor Lynch moved the motion to delegate the powers to grant the hackney 
vehicle licence for one year to the Licensing and Compliance Officer on the 
condition that the vehicle passes all of the Authority’s required tests prior to 
grant. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor Smith 
 
A vote followed the motion, 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer returned to the meeting. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Regulatory Panel considered the application, the officer’s report, 
representations from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also 
considered relevant legislation and the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for one 
year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance Officer 
for any subsequent renewal.  This is on the condition that the vehicle passes all 
of the Authority’s required tests prior to grant, i.e. on receipt of the full service 
history and so long as the Council taxi test, independent engineer’s test and 
MOT are successfully passed.  Although the vehicle now falls outside the 
Vehicle Age Policy, the vehicle is considered to meet the conditions outlined in 
section 3 of the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy so long as the tests are passed as 
outlined.   
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 

 
 
 

Page 54



357. To consider an application to grant a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the licensing 
regulatory panel to consider whether a person who has made an application for 
a hackney carriage driver’s licence is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence. 
 
The applicant was in attendance at the meeting. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer delivered the report to the panel. The 
applicant has been a licensed hackney carriage driver since 2018, this licence 
expired on 18 September 2019. 
 
The application to renew the licence was submitted online on 10 January 2020, 
as this is more than 28 days following the expiration of a licence the existing 
documents and checks cannot be considered and as such the applicant needs 
to make a new application. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence on the grounds that the 
applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 
 
Members then asked questions of the officers, the Licensing and Compliance 
Officer explained the renewal process and advised that there were no problems 
with the applicants licence since it was first granted. 
 
The applicant then gave their representations and answered questions from 
members.  
 
The applicant explained that they had not got a reminder to renew their licence 
and that they are also a Licenced driver in Copeland. The applicant went to 
explain that in Copeland renewal is every 3 years and believed the rules were 
the same in Allerdale. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, applicant 
representations The Panel has also considered the relevant legislation and the 
Council’s policies on Hackney Carriage licence applications.  
 
Councillor Smith moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage driver licence  
 
This was seconded by Councillor Gaston 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 5 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 

Page 55



 
Decision/Reasons 

 
The Licensing Panel considered the application, the officer’s report, the 
representations from the applicant and advice from officers.   
 
The licensing panel decided to agree to grant the licence for a period of 12 
months, after which the decision to continue to do so will be delegated to the 
Licensing Officer should there be no further issues.  
 
The panel acknowledged that there has been an oversight in respect of 
renewing the licence.  However, it considered the fact that there have been no 
problems with the checks submitted previously by the applicant and on that 
basis, is satisfied that the licensing objectives are fulfilled.   
 
The panel had considered the information provided in conjunction with the 
overriding objective of protecting the safety of the public.  
 
The applicant was advised that if they are aggrieved by the decision, they have 
the right to appeal to the Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written 
notification of the decision. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 2.45 pm 
 

Page 56



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Licensing Committee – 20 November 2020 

 

Review of Statement of Licensing Policy 2021 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Jim Lister 

 

Report from    Gillian Collinson 

Wards affected   All Wards 

Is this a key decision  Yes  
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 To recommend a new Statement of Licensing Policy for 2021-2026 to be adopted 
by Council after considering the proposed amendments to the policy by Officers and 
responses received to the statutory consultation.  

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 To review the amendments and proposals and determine their inclusion or 
otherwise, giving full reasons for decisions and to recommend a new policy for 
adoption. 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (‘the Act’) requires a licensing authority to 

prepare and publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ at least every five years. It 
must be published before the authority carries out any function in respect of 
individual applications and notices made under the terms of the Act. During the five 
year period, the policy must be kept under review and revisions should be made to 
it as appropriate. The current policy came into effect on 7 January 2016 and is now 
due to be reviewed.   A revised statement is to be published by 7 January 2021. 

3.2 Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act provides guidance on the 
development and preparation of statements of licensing policy for publication by 
local authorities.  It also provides guidance in respect of the general principles that 
are recommended should underpin them, and core content to which licensing 
authorities are free to add.  

Page 57

Agenda Item 5



3.3 The determination of the Statement of Licensing Policy is not a Licensing 
Committee function but it is intended that the recommendations of this committee 
will be referred to Council for their consideration when formally adopting a new 
policy on 9 December 2020. The revised policy will then be published. 

3.4 The Act stipulates who should be consulted when reviewing the policy.  The views 
of all these persons or bodies should be given appropriate weight when the policy is 
determined. This does not prevent other bodies or persons from being consulted. 
Details of those consulted are contained in paragraph 4.2. 

4.0  Content  

 
4.1 Prior to consultation, the draft document was formulated by the Senior Licensing 

and Compliance Officer, taking into consideration the latest guidance from the 
Secretary of State, together with any changes necessary in view of amendments to 
legislation and local changes. These proposed changes can be found at Appendix 
1. 

4.2 The draft document was published for consultation between 16 October 2020 and 
13 November 2020.  The Act states as a minimum who must be consulted. These 
are: 

 The chief officer of police for the area; 

 The fire and rescue authority for the area; 

 Director of Public Health for the area; 

 Persons/bodies representative of local premises licence holders; 

 Persons/bodies representative of local club premises certificate holders; 

 Persons/bodies representative of local personal licence holders; and 

 Persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents in its area. 

The following were consulted: 

 All responsible authorities (Cumbria Constabulary, Cumbria Fire and Rescue 
Service, Health and Safety Executive, Environmental Health Department, 
Planning Department, Lake District National Park Authority, Cumbria 
Safeguarding Children Partnership, Cumbria County Council Public Health, 
Trading Standards and the Home Office); 

 All Councillors; 

 All town/parish councils; 

 Housing Associations; 

 British Transport Police; 

The consultation was: 

 advertised in the Times and Star and Cumberland News;  

 published in three Allerdale Borough Council newsletters. One of these 
newsletters was published on 16 October 2020 and was circulated to 593 
people who subscribe to news about consultations and engagement. This 
just had the one item being the licensing policy review. The others were 
published on 20 October 2020 to a combined subscriber base of 1505 

Page 58



people who subscribe to “Local Business, trade waste, NNDR, licensing 
and procurement” topics and to “Economic Growth, planning, building 
control, towns and housing” topics. These contained news of the licensing 
policy review and a consultation from planning policy, and; 

 published on the Allerdale Borough Council website.    

4.3 The responses received to the consultation were compiled into a document with an 
initial assessment and recommendation as to whether they should be included or 
not, and reasons were given for each. These can be found at Appendix 2. They 
have not been incorporated into the draft licensing policy which can be found at 
appendix 3. These will be incorporated following Members’ assessment.    

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 The policy is designed to promote the four licensing objectives contained within the 

Licensing Act 2003 which are: 
   

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and 

 The protection of children from harm.  
 
5.2 The policy seeks to reinforce and develop measures to improve the safety of the 

public and minimise the risk of crimes against them, to mitigate the effects of 
regulated activities upon the communities in which the activities are held, and to 
protect children from inappropriate activities. 

 
5.3 The policy also seeks to provide useful information to those who provide, or wish to 

provide, regulated activities.  It seeks to assist them in understanding the policies 
which will be applied and to understand that each application will be treated 
equitably having regard to the policy. 

 
5.4 It is also the aim of the policy to provide information to communities about the 

Authority’s approach to particular licensing considerations and to assist them in 
addressing matters affecting them arising from the provision of regulated activities. 

 
5.5 Following adoption, the policy will be delivered on a continuous basis by: 

 

 officers when advising and administering applications 

 the Licensing Panel and Licensing Committee when determining applications 
or reviews referred to them as a result of representations received by the 
Responsible Authorities or Interested Parties, and  

 by any revisions required to the Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 

 
 

Page 59



6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

 Council Strategy 2020-2030 – This Statement of Licensing Policy contributes 
towards the Council achieving its strategic objectives by: 

 

o helping to create Thriving Towns and Villages where visitors and 
residents can enjoy a range of leisure and cultural activities, and  

o by supporting Resilient Communities helping to make sure that people 
can stay safe and feel safe in their everyday lives and helping to 
create safe, strong and inclusive communities.    

 

 West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Plan – The implementation of 
the licensing policy reduces crime and disorder related to licensable 
activities. 

 

 Joint Public Health Strategy -  effective licensing policy and practices will 
help to address some of the wider determinants of health and wellbeing 
identified as priorities in this strategy, in particular supporting the aim ‘To 
reduce crime and antisocial behaviour and to ensure that people in Cumbria 
retain low levels of fear of crime across the whole County’. 

 

 Local Transport Plan – By promoting safe access to licensed events, this 
helps support the LTP. 

 

 Economic Growth Strategy - Licensable activities and businesses are a key 
part of a vibrant and diverse local economy, forming part of the local 
business base and also helping to attract and keep business in our area by 
making our towns and villages attractive places for employees to live.   

 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications  

Application fees are statutory and are intended to provide full cost recovery of all 
the licensing functions related to the Licensing Act 2003, including the preparation 
and publication of a Statement of Licensing Policy, but this will be based on 
statutory requirements. Where these requirements are exceeded, the licensing 
authority must absorb these costs itself.  

The process of reviewing the policy has been carried out in the most economical 
way possible and predominantly by email to the responsible authorities. To reach as 
many of the other statutory consultees as possible, advertisements were placed in 
the Times & Star and Cumberland News. Advertisements were also contained in 
newsletters sent to relevant subscribers and on the Allerdale Borough Council 
website.  

The direct cost of advertising was £767.05.There would be no impact on the 
revenue budget or capital budget.  

 

Page 60



6.3 Legal and governance implications  

  
When making a licensing decision, the Licensing Authority must have regard to the 
Licensing Act 2003, the accompanying Secretary of State guidance and the 
Statement of Licensing Policy. It may depart from its own policy if the individual 
circumstances of any case merit such a decision in the interests of the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. However, it is important that full reasons should be given 
for departing from its published statement of licensing policy. 

 
The Statement of Licensing Policy should indicate how the licensing authority 
intends to approach its various functions. Many of the decisions and functions are 
purely administrative in nature and the policy should underline the principle of 
delegation in the interests of speed, efficiency and cost-effectiveness. Many types 
of application which do not receive representations must be granted by the licensing 
authority and should be dealt with by officers in order to expedite matters. The 
Secretary of State’s guidance accompanying the Licensing Act 2003 does contain a 
recommendation as to how the delegation should be approached and this table of 
recommended delegation of functions has always been contained in the policy.  
 
One proposed change to the delegation (appendix 1, page 34 in the draft policy) is 
the addition of the Determination of a Film Classification. This is usually referred to 
the Licensing Committee to determine but it is being proposed that in all cases it is 
referred to Officers to determine. In most cases this would be where the Licensing 
Authority is approached to classify small, local, independent films, or foreign films 
where a wider UK release is not intended. To achieve consistency the guidelines 
published by the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) would always be used. 
As with all delegations, officers may refer a matter to the Panel, the Panel to full 
Committee and the Committee to Council. The proposal is to make the process 
faster, particularly as an officer would have watched the film and highlighted areas 
of concern and made recommendations in line with the BBFC guidelines to the 
Licensing Committee.   

  

6.4 Risk analysis 

Not relevant to this report 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

The purpose of the Statement of Licensing Policy is to provide a framework for the 
Licensing Authority in relation to the carrying out of their functions under the 
Licensing Act 2003. It provides information to those who run licensed premises, 
their legal advisors and the general public, thereby assisting with the application 
process. It improves transparency by demonstrating a consistent approach to the 
application of licensing powers, promoting fairness and equal treatment which is 
particularly relevant for licence holders having numerous premises across the 
authority area. By highlighting the best practice expected across our licensed 
premises, this achieves consistency and visitors and customers can feel safe and 
secure.   

 

Page 61



  

6.6 Equality impacts 

An Equality Impact Analysis has been completed and no adverse impacts from the 
policy have been identified.  

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

The nature of the policy is to demonstrate how Allerdale Borough Council will 
promote the four licensing objectives, one of which is public safety, and the 
expectations required from licence holders and applicants.  

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

The nature of the policy is to demonstrate how Allerdale Borough Council will 
promote the four licensing objectives and its expectations of licence holders and 
applicants for licences. These include the prevention of crime and disorder, public 
safety and protection of children from harm.  

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

The nature of the policy is to demonstrate how Allerdale Borough Council will 
promote the four licensing objectives which includes public safety and public 
nuisance and its expectations of licence holders and applicants for licences.  

6.10 Other significant implications 

 There are no significant implications. 
 
 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

1 Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer amendments to 
draft policy prior to consultation 

2 Responses to consultation 

3 Draft Statement of Licensing Policy 

4 Equality Impact Analysis 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

  

 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Gillian Collinson 
Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer 
Gillian.collinson@allerdale.gov.uk   
01900 702861  

Page 62

mailto:Gillian.collinson@allerdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1- Amendments made by Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer prior to consultation 

Draft Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 

Clause Original Clause Amended Clause 

Front page  Insertion of ‘Draft’ 

Change of dates to 2021-26 

Instructions for consultation responses 

 

Contents  Changes to Contents page to reflect changes in the 

body of the document. 

  

Introduction 1.3 Allerdale is located in West Cumbria bordering the 

Solway Firth and Irish Sea as well as Carlisle and three 
district councils.  The south east quarter of the Borough 
is covered by the Lake District National Park.  The 
Borough has a population of approximately 96,000 living 
in approximately 46,000 properties, of which 33,430 are 
owner occupied, 4,150 are privately rented, 37,580 
private sector stock, 8590 registered providers, and 8590 
social housing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Allerdale is predominantly rural in nature.  In the north of 
the Borough settlements are small and dispersed while 
the south contains the main urban 
centres.  Approximately two thirds of the population live 
within the six large settlements of Workington, Maryport, 
Cockermouth, Wigton, Aspatria, Keswick and Silloth. 

Updated with amendments in blue: 
 
Allerdale is located in West Cumbria bordering the 
Solway Firth and Irish Sea.  The north of the borough is 
close to the city of Carlisle and the as well as Carlisle 
and three district councils.  The south east quarter of the 
borough is covered by the Lake District National 
Park.  The borough has a population of approximately 
97,500 living in approximately 47,000 properties, of 
which 69% are owner occupied 19% are defined as 
social rented housing and 11% are privately rented. of 
which 33,430 are owner occupied, 4,150 are privately 
rented, 37,580 private sector stock, 8590 registered 
providers, and 8590 social housing. 

 

Allerdale is predominantly rural in nature.  Allerdale has 
three distinct components: the urban centres on the 
west coast; the dispersed hill farms, forests, fells and 
lakes of the Lake District National Park; and the rural 
and fertile Solway plains including the Coastal Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty stretching to the north 
towards Carlisle.  In the north of the borough 

P
age 63



 

Allerdale has three distinct components: the urban 
centres on the west coast; the dispersed hill farms, 
forests, fells and lakes of the Lake District National Park; 
and the rural and fertile Solway plains including the 
Coastal Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty stretching to 
the north towards Carlisle.  

 
The borough recognises that thriving leisure and 
entertainment businesses are an important part of the 
economy and this policy is vital to their continuing 
success and for attracting further investment and 
opportunities to the area.  Balanced against this are the 
Council’s legal duties with regard to public safety, public 
nuisance, protection of children and commitment with its 
partners to reducing crime and the fear of crime. 

 
 
 

1.4   It is also important to protect and maintain our        
environment so that residents, visitors and other 
businesses can enjoy the opportunities for living, visiting 
and working within the area safely and free from 
nuisance.  The Council values its younger people and is 
active in ensuring they are offered a wide range of 
opportunities and experiences to develop while seeking 
to protect them from harm.  

 
 

settlements are small and dispersed while the south 
contains the main urban centres.  Approximately two 
thirds of the population live within the six larger 
settlements of Workington, Maryport, Cockermouth, 
Wigton, Aspatria, Keswick and Silloth. 

 
 
 
 

The Council borough recognises that thriving leisure 
and entertainment businesses are an important part of 
the local economy and this policy is vital in helping to 
create thriving towns and villages to their continuing 
success and for attracting further investment and 
opportunities to the area.  Balanced against this are the 
Council’s legal duties with regard to public safety, public 
nuisance, protection of children from harm and 
commitment with its partners to reducing crime and the 
fear of crime. 

 
It is also important to protect and maintain our living 
environment so that residents, visitors and other 
businesses can enjoy the opportunities for living, visiting 
and working within the area safely and free from 
nuisance.  The Council values its younger people and is 
active in ensuring that residents and visitors alike they 
are offered a wide range of opportunities and 
experiences to develop while seeking to protect them 
from harm.  
 

4.20 
Name of relevant document updated 

The Health and Safety Executive website contains many 
useful guidance documents on event safety. In particular 
organisers are recommended to obtain the document 
known as the Purple Guide published by the Events 
Industry Forum.  

P
age 64



 

5.3 Addition of Best Bar None or other relevant schemes to 
the paragraph 

 

Participation in pub/club watch, Best Bar None or other 
relevant schemes  
 
 
 

5.3 Expansion of list of practical steps under Prevention of 
Crime and Disorder objective  

 

5.3 Introduction of paragraph headed “Drugs”  

5.3 Expansion of section headed “Public Safety” and 
increase of practical steps to be taken to promote that 
objective 

 

5.3 Expansion of list of practical steps to prevent public 
nuisance and introduction of new sections headed 
“Location of premises”, “Noise” and “Littering” 

 

5.3 

 

Protection of Children From Harm – expansion of 
paragraph and increase in list of practical steps to 
promote that licensing objective.  
Introduction of new sections headed “Adult 
Entertainment”, “Exhibition of films”, “Staging of plays” 

 

5.8 Are able to respond to problems quickly and to meet with 
responsible authorities, local residents and ensure 
adequate direct management of individual premises in a 
timely manner.  

 
 

Expansion to bullet point: 
 
Are able to respond to problems and changes quickly 
and responsibly including the implementation of 
government guidance and legislation. To meet with 
responsible authorities and/or local residents and 
ensure adequate direct management of individual 
premises in a timely manner.  
 
 

5.9 Following a Police representation the Licensing Authority 
may refuse an application or remove a DPS where:  

 
A problem premises exists and the DPS is not capable of 
fulfilling the duties and expectations of a DPS; or 

Additional paragraph: This is likely where the prevention 
of crime and disorder will be undermined by reason of 
that person’s known past conduct. A person is likely to 
be considered unsuitable if he has previous unspent 

P
age 65



A proposed DPS cannot demonstrate their suitability for 
the licensed premises 

convictions for a relevant offence, notwithstanding that 
he has been granted a personal licence 
  
 

6.0 Personal Licences - Introduction of new paragraphs 
relating to new right to work provisions from 6 April 2017 
and the new power for Licensing Authorities to revoke or 
suspend Personal Licences.  
New paragraphs 6.6 and 6.7 expanding on factors the 
Licensing Authority will take into account when 
considering representations to Personal Licence 
applications   
 

 

7.7 It should be noted that incomplete applications will not be 
accepted but returned with an explanation of why it is 
incomplete. 

It should be noted that incomplete applications will not be 
accepted but returned with an explanation of why it is 
incomplete. Applicants are advised to read thoroughly the 
guidance notes at the back of each application prior to 
completing the form and to take independent legal advice 
where necessary. Applications should not be deemed as 
accepted and valid when submitted. They will be checked 
and applicants will be informed when the application is 
deemed valid. By not waiting for this confirmation, 
 applicants risk the expense of having to re-advertise due 
to inaccuracies or not complying with the statutory 
timelines of advertising.   
 

8.0 Responsible authorities and other persons – rewording of 
paragraphs 8.1- 8.10 to make clear when 
representations/reviews by all agencies/persons/groups 
are accepted and considerations 

 

8.15 New paragraph explaining factors which will be assessed 
by the Licensing Authority when considering 
representations 

 

10.0 Sexual Entertainment Venues – New paragraph  

P
age 66



Appendix 1 Table of Delegated Functions Amendments to update consultee changes in 
legislation and to include two new application 
processes; and 
Proposal to delegate  “determination of film 
classification” to officers in all cases 
 

Appendix 4 List of consultees Amended to reflect consultees for review of 
Statement of Licensing Policy for 2021-26 

Appendix 5 Links between the licensing policy and other Council 

strategies and policies.  

 

Updated (with additions in blue)  
 

Council Strategy 2020-2030 – This licensing policy 

contributes towards the Council achieving its strategic 

objectives by helping to create Thriving Towns and 

Villages where visitors and residents can enjoy a range 

of leisure and cultural activities and by supporting 

Resilient Communities helping to make sure that people 

can stay safe and feel safe in their everyday lives and 

helping to create safe, strong and inclusive 

communities.  

West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Plan  – 

The implementation of the licensing policy reduces 

crime and disorder related to licensable activities. 

Joint Public Health Strategy -  effective licensing policy 

and practices will help to address some of the wider 

determinants of health and wellbeing identified as 

priorities in this strategy, in particular supporting the aim 

‘To reduce crime and antisocial behaviour and to ensure 

P
age 67



that people in Cumbria retain low levels of fear of crime 

across the whole County’. 

Local Transport Plan – By promoting safe access to 

licensed events, this helps support the LTP. 

Cumbria Community Strategy – This assists in 

achieving safe, strong and inclusive communities. 

(doesn’t exist anymore) 

Cultural Strategy – (no longer in use) 

Economic Growth Strategy - Licensable activities 
and businesses are a key part of a vibrant and 
diverse local economy, forming part of the local 
business base and also helping to attract and keep 
business in our area by making our towns and 
villages attractive places for employees to live 
 
 

Appendix 6 Responsible Authorities 
 

Amendments to addresses and telephone 

numbers/email; and 

Addition of Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) as a 

responsible authority  

 

P
age 68



Schedule of Responses to draft Licensing Policy 2021-26                                                                                       Appendix 2 

 

Reference Respondent Comments Action taken /comments 

 

Members will note that some comments in this appendix reference the guidance contained within S182 Guidance to the Licensing Act 

issued by the Home Office. Paragraph 1.9 of that guidance states: “Section 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 provides that, in carrying out its 

functions, a licensing authority must “have regard to” guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This Guidance is 

therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of 

circumstances that may arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this guidance, they may depart from it if 

they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons. Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial 

review, and the reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the lawfulness and merits of any decision 

taken”. 

Email 
rec’d 
20/10/20 
 
 
 

Cllr M Fitzgerald Page 7 – Reference to pubwatch scheme and Best Bar 
None. The OPCC discontinued funding for pubwatch as 
of September. I don’t think the scheme exists anymore. 

Point raised with the Police. They 
responded that pubwatch schemes will 
still be part of the process and life of 
licensed premises, but how that looks 
has not been resolved yet. It could be 
tasked to the PCSOs for the area but 
they are trying to build a plan. 
 
Noted: to retain the reference to 
pubwatch in the policy and no 
amendment necessary 
 
 

 
Phone 
call 
22/10/20 

 
Cllr R Munby 

 
Para 8.5 - Spelling mistake  
 

 
Amendment recommended 
 

P
age 69



 
 

No mention of pandemics in the policy. Could any 
reference to it be put in with the expectation of co-
operation of licence holders to such situations and 
penalties for acting illegally or irresponsibly and not 
respecting emergency measures?  

Comment – It is a public health issue. 
Health is not one of the four licensing 
objectives. Environmental Health and 
Cumbria Police would take the lead on 
advice and compliance. Additional 
licensing issues/breaches would be 
dealt with on a case by case basis. 
Covid shouldn’t be specifically 
mentioned but the responsibilities of a 
Designated Premises Supervisor can 
be expanded. 
Amendment recommended to 
paragraph 5.8 to expand on the 
responsibilities of the Designated 
Premises Supervisor:  
“Are able to respond to problems and 
changes quickly and responsibly 
including the implementation of 
government guidance and legislation. 
To meet with responsible authorities 
and/or local residents and ensure 
adequate direct management of 
individual premises in a timely manner”  
 

 
Email 
rec’d 
21/10/20 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Keswick Town 
Councillors. Not 
endorsed by 
Keswick Town 
Council due to no 
meeting before 
the close of 
consultation 

 
Para 3.3 Scope - Delete: ‘A minority of consumers will 
behave badly and unlawfully once away from premises, 
and it would be unreasonable to expect licence holders 
to have control over these individual people.’ 
Add: ‘Regular incidences of bad behaviour by customers 
close to the premises will lead to a review of the licence.’ 
Reason - As currently written, 3.3 absolves the licence 
holder of any responsibility for activities outside the 

 
Comment – S182 Guidance to the 
Licensing Act 2003 (the guidance) 
published by the Home Office, 
paragraph 1.16 includes under its 
heading “Licence Conditions”: “Licence 
conditions cannot seek to manage the 
behaviour of customers once they are 
beyond the direct management of the 

P
age 70



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

premises.  The description ‘away from the premises’ is 
far too loose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Para 5.0 Licensing Objectives - Add: ‘Licence 
applications will be copied in a timely manner to the 
relevant Parish Council for comment.’ 
Reason - Planning applications are made known to the 
local council and neighbours of the premises.  Licensing 
applications (and variations) have the same potential for 
disruption and should mirror the same procedure and 
provide an opportunity for a similar local review and 
correspondence. 
 
Page 12 Littering - Add: ‘Single use plastic items are 
discouraged and take away containers should be 
recyclable or compostable’ 
 
Para 8.25 Review of Licences - Delete: ‘No more than 
one review from a person other than responsible 
authorities will normally be permitted within any 12 
month period on similar grounds except in exceptional 
and compelling circumstances or where it arises 
following a closure order.’   

licence holder and their staff, but may 
impact on the behaviour of customers 
in the immediate vicinity of the 
premises or as they enter or leave”  
 
Recommend – add wording “ 
Regular incidences of bad behaviour 
by customers under the direct 
management of the licence holder 
and staff may lead to a review of the 
licence” 
 
Amendment recommended with the 
following proviso – Applications for new 
and full variation applications to be 
circulated to the town/parish council for 
the area for consultation within the 
statutory timescales as contained within 
the Licensing Act 2003.  
  

 
 

Amendment recommended – 
Environmental Health consulted on this 
proposal and in agreement  

 
Comments – S182 guidance para 
11.13 provides guidance on this aspect. 
“It is for licensing authorities to judge 
what should be regarded as a 
reasonable interval. However, it is 
recommended that one review 
originating from a person other than a 

P
age 71



Email 
rec’d 
26/10/20 
 

Cllr N Cockburn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Add ‘No more than one review from a person other than 
responsible authorities will normally be permitted within 
any 6 month period on similar grounds except in 
exceptional and compelling circumstances or where it 
arises following a closure order.’ 
Reason - 12 months is too long for a complainant to 
have to wait to prove they were right. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

responsible authority should not be 
permitted within a 12 month period on 
similar grounds save in compelling 
circumstances or where it arises 
following a closure order” In addition a 
review process would take almost 3 
months to complete. The application is 
consulted on for 28 days, up to 20 
further days for a hearing and the 
decision does not take effect for 28 
days. One power of the Licensing 
Panel is to suspend a licence for 3 
months. Paragraph 11.10 of the 
guidance stipulates that where there 
are concerns about problems identified 
at a premises, it is good practice for to 
give licence holders early warning of 
the concerns and the need for 
improvement. A failure to respond to 
such warnings is expected to lead to a 
decision to apply for a review. Co-
operation at a local level in promoting 
the licensing objectives should be 
encouraged and reviews should not be 
used to undermine this co-operation.   
 
Amendment noted and recommend 
no change due to the expectation of 
co-operation in the first instance and 
the lengthy review process before 
reaching a conclusion. The policy does 
already state that applications will be 
accepted within a 12 month period if 

P
age 72



 
 
 
Page 31 Consultation – In addition, neighbours, Ward 
Councillors and the Parish Council will be consulted. 
 
Reason - To be more open and transparent the ward 
councillors and PCs should be consulted. The scenario 
to have live bands and alcohol with people driving on 
PROWs in what is considered to be a wildlife preserve 
and community asset nearly slipped through without an 
objection because no one knew about it. 
 
Page 31 Consultation – All documentation 
accompanying, for example a music and alcohol 
application to be available online. 
 
Reason - Again to be open and transparent. Eg the 
mitigation measures for noise nuisance and public/child 
safety arrangements online should be available. 
 
 

there are exceptional and compelling 
circumstances 
 

Amendment recommended with the 
following proviso – Applications for new 
and full variation applications to be 
circulated to both the Ward Councillors 
and town/parish council for the area for 
consultation within the statutory 
timescales as contained within the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

 
 

Comment – the current system does 
not facilitate documents to be uploaded 
and made available on line. The public 
register contains details of the 
application. The full application and 
accompanying documentation is 
circulated as part of the consultation. 
Additional information received as a 
result of a representation is usually 
copied to the agency requesting it and 
if relevant, to an interested party.  

Noted – recommend no amendment 
necessary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 73



 
 

 
Email 
rec’d 
26/10/20 
 
 

 
Cllr M Heaslip 
 

 
Agree and support Councillor Cockburn’s proposed 
amendments. 
 
 

 
Amended recommended as above 
 
 

Email 
rec’d 
29/10/20 

Cllr E Lynch Agree and support Councillor Cockburn’s comments and 
recommendations on consultation. 
 
Para 5.6, 5.9, 6.1, 8.6 (and remaining document) DPS – 
Replace all the ‘his’ with ‘their’ 
Reason – to make it gender neutral. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Para 12.13 EMRO – To be sent to Ward Councillors, 
Town Councils and local residents too. 
Reason – To get the views of the community.  
 

Amendment recommended as above 
 
 
Comment – Under paragraph 4.0 
(General Matters) of the draft policy 
definitions are given. This includes: 
“Words denoting any gender shall 
include all genders, words in the singular 
shall include the plural and vice versa, 
and words denoting persons shall 
include firms and corporations” 
Noted – Recommend no amendment 
necessary  
 
Comment – S182 Guidance 
paragraphs 17.11, 17.12 and 17.13 
specify the process to follow when 
proposing an EMRO, who must be 
consulted and how it must be 
advertised.  
Recommend – Ward Councillors and 
Parish/Town Council for the relevant 
area be notified of the proposal. As an 
EMRO could cover potentially a large 
area, the notices required to be 

P
age 74



displayed in the area and 
advertisement in local newspapers is 
sufficient for residents without separate 
notification.  

Email 
rec’d 
28/10/20 

Bothel Parish 
Council 

There is no mention of any incident related to Covid 19 
restrictions etc. Is this just a public health issue? 

Comment – It is a public health issue. 
Health is not one of the four licensing 
objectives. Environmental Health and 
Cumbria Police would take the lead on 
advice and compliance. Additional 
licensing issues/breaches would be 
dealt with on a case by case basis 
Recommend – Amendment to 
paragraph 5.8 as above and response 
noted and acknowledgement sent to 
Bothel Parish Council.  

 

5.11.20 

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 76



 

 

ALLERDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 

 

Licensing Act 2003 

Review of Statement of Licensing Policy 

 

 

For the period 2016 - 2021 

 
Written comments are invited on this  

draft revised policy by 13 November 2020 to:   
 
 

Allerdale Borough Council 
Allerdale House 

Workington 
Cumbria CA14 3YJ 

 
Tel: 0303 123 1702 

Email: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk 
 

The consultation exercise will take place between 16 October 2020 and 13 November 
2020.  Further copies of this document may be obtained from the above address or 

from the Council’s website:- www.allerdale.gov.uk 
Respondents to the consultation are requested to use a standard ‘Responses to 
Consultation’ form available along with this document, although separate written 

submissions will also be accepted. 
  

Page 77



 

 

 
Page 1 

 
  

 
1.0 Introduction ................................................................................................... 2 

2.0 Purpose of Policy .......................................................................................... 3 

3.0 Scope of this policy ....................................................................................... 3 

4.0 General matters ............................................................................................. 4 

5.0 Licensing Objectives...................................................................................... 7 

6.0 Personal licences ........................................................................................ 16 

7.0 Applications ................................................................................................. 19 

8.0 Responsible Authorities and Other persons ................................................. 22 

9.0 Temporary Event Notices (TEN’s) ............................................................... 26 

11.0 Cumulative Impact Policy ............................................................................ 28 

12.0 Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMRO) ................................................... 29 

13.0 Late Night Levy  .......................................................................................... 32 

14.0 Compliance ................................................................................................. 32 

15.0 Administration, Exerise and Delegation of functions .................................... 33 

Appendix 1 – Table of Delegated functions ......................................................................... 34 

Appendix 2 – Appeals procedure ........................................................................................ 36 

Appendix 3 – Guides of Best Practice ................................................................................. 37 

Appendix 4 – List of Consultees .......................................................................................... 39 

Appendix 5 – Links between the licensing policy and other Council strategies and policies  40 

Appendix 6 – Responsible Authorities ................................................................................. 41 

Appendix 7 – Other Useful Addresses ................................................................................ 43 

  

Page 78



 

 

 
Page 2 

 
  

 

1.0 Introduction  

 

1.1 Welcome to Allerdale Borough Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.  It will apply 
for a maximum of five years.  The policy will be kept under review and may be 
revised in light of experience or revisions to guidance issued under section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

 

1.2 The Licensing Act 2003 requires Allerdale Borough Council as the Licensing 
Authority, to prepare and publish a statement of Licensing Policy.  The policy sets out 
principles that the Council generally applies to promote the licensing objectives when 
making decisions on applications made under this act.  An extensive consultation 
exercise was held before the policy was published. 
 

1.3 Allerdale is located in West Cumbria bordering the Solway Firth and Irish Sea. The 
north of the borough is close to the city of Carlisle and the south east quarter of the 
Borough is covered by the Lake District National Park.  The Borough has a 
population of approximately 97,500 living in approximately 47,000 properties, of 
which 69% are owner occupied, 19% are defined as social rented housing and 11% 
are privately rented. 
 

Allerdale is predominantly rural in nature. Allerdale has three distinct components: 

the urban centres on the west coast; the dispersed hill farms, forests, fells and lakes 

of the Lake District National Park; and the rural and fertile Solway plains including the 

Coastal Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty stretching to the north towards Carlisle. 

Approximately two thirds of the population live within the six larger settlements of 

Workington, Maryport, Cockermouth, Wigton, Aspatria, Keswick and Silloth.  

 
The towns are the base for many cultural and leisure activities and there are many 
businesses associated with the Licensing Act provisions.  These include cinemas, 
theatres, restaurants, public houses, off licences, nightclubs and take-away outlets. 
 
The Council recognises that thriving leisure and entertainment businesses are an 
important part of the local economy and this policy is vital in helping to create thriving 
towns and villages and for attracting further investment and opportunities to the area.  
Balanced against this are the Council’s legal duties with regard to public safety, 
public nuisance, protection of children and commitment with its partners to reducing 
crime and the fear of crime. 
 

1.4 It is also important to protect and maintain our living environment so that residents, 
visitors and other businesses can enjoy the opportunities for living, visiting and 
working within the area safely and free from nuisance.  The Council is active in 
ensuring that residents and visitors alike are offered a wide range of opportunities 
and experiences while seeking to protect them from harm.  
 

1.5 Guidance such as the Licensing Policy aims to advise businesses and individuals on 
how they can develop, as well as clarifying the national licensing legislation.  
 

1.6 If you require further clarification on the Licensing Policy please contact our Licensing 
Team. 

  

Page 79



 

 

 
Page 3 

 
  

 

2.0 Purpose of Policy  

 

2.1 Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires a Licensing Authority to prepare and 
publish a statement of this licensing policy every five years.  Such a policy must be 
published before the authority carries out any function in respect of individual 
applications made under the terms of the Act.  This is the third review of our 
Licensing Policy and following a public consultation, Allerdale Borough Council 
resolves to approve the revised policy on the 9 December 2020 to be effective from 7 
January 2021 for the next five years.   
 

2.2 This policy statement has amongst other things, four main purposes:  
 

 To provide Members of the Licensing Committee with a decision-making 
framework.  The policy will be taken into account at a hearing following 
representations.  
 

 To inform applicants of the parameters within which the Authority is able to make 
licensing decisions and allow them to take this into account when making 
applications.  

 

 To provide guidance to local residents and businesses of the boundaries within 
which the Licensing Authority will make licensing decisions.  This will assist those 
parties when making representations in relation to various applications.  

 

 To support the Licensing Authority if it has to demonstrate in a court of law how it 
arrived at its licensing decisions.   

 

2.3 The policy will be kept under review and the Licensing Authority will if necessary, 
after appropriate consultations, make such revisions to it as may be considered 
appropriate.  Any amendments will be incorporated in the licensing statement after 
each review.  

 

3.0 Scope of this policy  

 

3.1 The Council as the Licensing Authority is responsible for authorising licensable 
activities, the issue of personal licences and other matters set out in the Act within 
this borough.  This policy relates to all those licensable activities identified as falling 
within the provisions of the Act, namely:   
 

 Retail sale of alcohol;  

 Supply of alcohol by or on behalf of club members;  

 Provision of regulated entertainment; and  

 Supply of late night refreshment being supply of hot food and/or hot drink from 
any premises (subject to any statutory exemption) including food stalls, between 
23:00 hours and 05:00 hours.   
 

3.2 In addition to the above the Act also makes the provision of licensing individuals to 
sell alcohol (personal licences); the permitting of certain licensable activities on a 
temporary basis (temporary event notice); and provisional statements.  
 

3.3 A minority of consumers will behave badly and unlawfully once away from premises, 
and it would be unreasonable to expect licence holders to have control over these 
individual people.  

Page 80



 

 

 
Page 4 

 
  

 

3.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that the Act is not a cure-all for all anti-social 
behaviour.  There is a breadth of other strategies for addressing these problems, for 
example:  
 

 Planning controls  

 Powers of local authorities to designate parts of the local authority areas as 
places where alcohol may not be consumed publicly 

 Powers of Police and Local Authorities under the Anti-Social behaviour 
legislation  

 Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices 

 The prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff selling alcohol 
to people who are drunk  

 Confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas protected by 
Public Space Protection Orders and dispersal powers 

 Police powers to close down instantly for up to 24 hours any licensed premises 
or temporary event on grounds of disorder, the likelihood of disorder or 
excessive noise emanating from the premises 

 The power of the Police, other responsible authorities or other person to seek a 
review of the licence or certificate 

 Promotion of positive activities 
 

4.0 General matters  

 

4.1 In this document: 
 

 “the Act” means the Licensing Act 2003 

 “the Authority” means the Licensing Authority, namely Allerdale Borough Council 

 “the Borough” means the area within the authority’s jurisdiction 

 Unless indicated to the contrary the words and phrases defined in the Act shall 
have the meanings given in the Act when used in this document 

 Any reference to the grant of a licence, certificate or provisional statement shall, 
unless the context indicates or it is specifically stated otherwise, include reference 
to the variation or review  of a licence 

 Policies in relation to premises licences shall also apply to provisional statements 
and club premises certificates unless it is expressly stated to the contrary or the 
context indicates otherwise 

 Words denoting any gender shall include all genders, words in the singular shall 
include the plural and vice versa, and words denoting persons shall include firms 
and corporations. 

 

4.2 Allerdale Borough Council is the Licensing Authority for this borough under the terms 
of the Act who are responsible for determining all applications for licensable activities, 
as defined in Section 1 of the Act.  
 

4.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that the Council operates services who act as 
‘Responsible Authorities’ i.e. Environmental Health, Planning, and the Licensing 
Authority, who are able to make representations on any licence application submitted 
under the terms of the Act.  The Licensing Authority will treat these submissions with 
the same consideration as any other representations having regard to the terms of 
Section 182 Statutory Guidance on this Licensing Policy. For the purpose of the Act, 
Cumbria County Council’s Safeguarding and Review team is the responsible 
authority in relating to the protection of children from harm.  

Page 81



 

 

 
Page 5 

 
  

 

4.4 The Act requires the Licensing Authority to keep a register containing a record of 
each premises licence, club premises certificate, personal licence issued and 
temporary event notice received and in doing so this will have regard to the 
information set out in Schedule 3 of the Act.  
 

4.5 To comply with this requirement our register may be accessed online using the 
following link https://ipa.allerdale.gov.uk/PAforLalpacLIVE/1/WcaHome 

 
Disclaimer 
  

4.6 Advice and guidance contained in the Statement of Licensing Policy is intended only 
to assist readers and should not be interpreted as legal advice or as constituent of 
Allerdale Borough Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.   Readers are strongly 
advised to seek their own legal advice if they are unsure of the requirements of the 
Licensing Act 2003 or of the Guidance or Regulations issued under the Act.  

 
Consultation 
  

4.7 There are a number of groups which have a stake in the leisure industry, including 
providers, customers, residents and enforcers, all of which have views and concerns 
that require consideration as part of the licensing function and promotion of the 
licensing objectives.  
 

4.8 In developing this policy statement, the Licensing Authority consulted widely.  Along 
with the statutory consultees (the Responsible Authorities), the views of existing 
license holders, businesses, voluntary groups and residents were also taken into 
account.  Due consideration was given to the views of all those who responded to the 
consultation process.  

 
Links to other Strategies  
 

4.9 In preparing this Statement of Licensing Policy, the Licensing Authority has had regard 
to and consulted with those involved in Allerdale Borough Council’s local strategies on 
crime prevention, planning transport, culture, tourism, community, eGovernment and 
economic development, to ensure the proper co-ordination and integration of the aims 
and actions of these policies.  See Appendix 5. 
 

4.10 Where appropriate, the licensing authority will co-ordinate and liaise with the planning 
authority and will provide information regarding licensed premises in the area, including 
evidenced alcohol related crime and disorder information where available, to enable 
the Planning Committee to have regard to such matters when making decisions.  
 

Planning and Building Control 
  

4.11 The Licensing Authority will ensure that planning, building control and licensing 
regimes will be separated to avoid duplication and inefficiency.  
 

4.12 The licensing authority would normally expect that applications for premises licences 
for permanent commercial premises should be from businesses with planning consent 
for the property concerned.  However, the licensing authority acknowledges that 
applications for premises licences or club premises certificates may be made prior to 
any relevant planning permission having being sought or granted by the planning 

Page 82

https://ipa.allerdale.gov.uk/PAforLalpacLIVE/1/WcaHome


 

 

 
Page 6 

 
  

authority.  Applicants would be expected to ensure that all relevant permissions are 
obtained.  
 

4.13 The licensing authority recognises that licensing applications should not be a re-run of 
planning applications nor should they cut across decisions taken by the planning 
committee or following appeals against decisions taken by the Council’s planning 
committee.  The licensing authority’s licensing panel will not be bound by decisions 
made by the Council’s planning committee and vice versa. 
 

4.14 Where the granting of any variation to a premises licence or club premises certificate 
involves a material alteration to a premises, the licensing authority would expect the 
applicant to apply for relevant planning permission or building control consent where 
appropriate.  
 

4.15 The Licensing Authority recognises that when, as a condition of planning permission a 
terminal hour has been set for the use of the premises for commercial purposes, and 
where these hours are different from the licensing hours, the applicant must observe 
the earlier closing time.  Premises operating in breach of their planning permission 
would be liable to prosecution under planning law.  

 
Special Events in the Open Air or in Temporary Structures  
 

4.16 The promotion and the organisation of live musical and similar entertainment in the 
open air or in temporary structures like marquees etc. can provide opportunities for 
community involvement, civic pride and can attract visitors to the borough.  
 

4.17 However, the success of such events by the way of contribution to the Council’s cultural 
and tourist strategies depends upon the quality, levels of safety and consideration for 
the rights of people who work in the vicinity and the standard of provision of facilities 
for those coming to enjoy the event.  
 

4.18 In recognition of the special factors that are relevant, particularly with respect to major 
open air events such as music festivals or similar large scale events, a multi-agency 
group has been established to assist organisers in co-ordinating such events, called 
the Safety Advisory Group. This includes council departments who have an interest in 
or legislative role relevant to such events, together with representatives of the various 
emergency services and other relevant agencies. Please follow the link to access the 
Safety Advisory Group 
http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/events_calendar/eventsafetyinformation.asp 

 

4.19 Members of the group are notified about all applications to hold such events and where 
necessary special meetings will be organised with the event organisers to advise on 
legislative requirements. 

 

4.20 The Health and Safety Executive website contains many useful guidance documents 
on event safety. In particular organisers are recommended to obtain the document 
known as the Purple Guide published by the Events Industry Forum.  
 

4.21 Guidance on the planning of such events is available to organisers but it is important 
that substantial notice is given so that proper preparations and precautions can be put 
in place for the event.  This also applies if the event is proposed under a Temporary 
Event Notice.  

  

Page 83

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/events_calendar/eventsafetyinformation.asp


 

 

 
Page 7 

 
  

 
Community Applicants 
  

4.22 Whilst this policy is aimed at all licensable activities under the Act it should be noted 
that the Council sees a distinction between large or permanent activities, such as those 
proposed by commercial operations and small or temporary activities such as those 
which might be proposed by cultural or community groups.  
 

4.23 Where events are proposed by cultural or community groups, it is recognised that those 
groups may not have the same skill or the expertise or access to professional advice.  
Such groups may seek assistance and guidance from the Council by contacting the 
Licensing Section.  
 

4.24 Whatever the nature of the applicant and activity proposed, the overriding matter is 
that the Council will consider the individual merits of the application and act so as to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

 

5.0 Licensing Objectives  

 

5.1 The Act sets out four licensing objectives which the Licensing Authority has a duty to 
promote when carrying out its licensing function, namely:  
 

 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder  

 Public Safety  

 The Prevention of Public Nuisance  

 The Protection of Children from Harm  
 

5.2 These objectives are the only factors that can be taken into account in determining 
an application and any conditions attached to the licence must be necessary to 
promote the licensing objectives.  If there are no relevant representations, then an 
application must be granted and subject only to mandatory conditions and conditions 
consistent with the applicants operating schedule.  Any conditions offered by the 
applicant within their operating schedule will become conditions on the licence.  
 

5.3 Where necessary, applicants are expected to consider the impact of their proposal on 
all the objectives both within and in the vicinity of the premises and to propose 
practical steps in their operating schedule.  Such steps could include: 
 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder:  
 

 The use of toughened glass/polycarbonate or other plastic/non glass 
bottles/receptacles 

 Measures to prevent open bottles or other drinks containers being carried 
from premises 

 Restriction of drinks promotions and responsible retailing  

 Means of providing free water 

 Marketing promotions do not encourage excessive consumption and should 
be socially responsible  

 Measures to prevent binge drinking  

 Participation in pub/club watch, Best Bar None or other relevant schemes  

 Use of appropriate numbers of security personal and stewards ensuring 
effective controls at all times.  Training staff in crime prevention measures  

 Search procedures  

Page 84



 

 

 
Page 8 

 
  

 Use of CCTV inside and outside premises, ensuring digital systems comply 
with Home Office minimum requirements 

 Adequate lighting  

 Design premises to minimise the opportunity for crime and disorder  

 Quality supervision and surveillance in premises  

 Regular checks by staff of all public areas including toilets  

 Assessment of customer profile ensuring the effective management of 
customers both inside premises and in outside smoking/external seating 
areas 

 Anti-discriminatory policies and practice covering e.g. homophobia and 
racism 

 Provision of a means of communication to other venues and the Police 

 Agreed protocols with police and other organisations and a commitment to 
co-operate and provide such evidence as the Police require 

 Ensuring that measures are in place to disperse customers over an extended 
period and ensure customers leave the venue in an orderly fashion and 
without bottles or glasses 

 If delivery of alcohol is part of the operating schedule, to ensure sufficient 
safeguards are in place, including but not limited to, challenging age, safety of 
delivery drivers, protocols for delivering to prevent alcohol being delivered to 
children, recording orders, only carrying ordered alcohol and a maximum 
number of items for delivery. 

 
Drugs 
 
The Authority will expect licensees of venues likely to be affected by drugs to take all 
reasonable steps to prevent the entry of drugs into licensed  
premises, to take appropriate steps to prevent drugs changing hands within the 
premises and to take practical measures to prevent problems arising as a result of 
drug misuse. This must include the provision of free water (in accordance with 
legislation) and a disposal policy for drugs, needles and the development of a drugs 
policy.  
 
In particular the Authority will expect licensees and other staff in such venues to be 
familiar with the contents of the book “Safer Nightlife” issued by the London Drugs 
Policy Forum and endorsed by the Home Office and will expect licensees to follow 
the guidance it contains in relation to the operation of their premises.  
 
In appropriate cases the Authority will consider imposing these recommendations by 
way of licence conditions.  
 
Evidence indicates that more people are taking illegal drugs and are using a wider 
range than ever before. This is particularly true of what are often referred to as 
‘recreational drugs’. Their misuse can hold grave dangers and has even led to 
fatalities. 
 
Other factors coupled with the taking of the drugs may have contributed to these 
deaths, such as lack of drinking water, excessive drinking of water, an overly hot 
environment with inadequate ventilation, or a lack of adequate information about 
drugs. 
 
Drugs alter the way people behave, so law controls their distribution and possession. 
Controlled drugs are usually manufactured and supplied illegally, which attracts 

Page 85



 

 

 
Page 9 

 
  

criminal involvement in their distribution. Drugs manufactured illegally often vary in 
quality and strength. This puts people taking such drugs in danger.  
 
The Authority recognises that drug use by young people in a club environment is not 
something that is relevant to all licensed premises. However, many entertainment 
venues such as nightclubs and dance venues can be popular both with drug 
misusers and suppliers. It also recognises the difficulties for those running such 
premises in preventing the use and supply of drugs in their premises. However, it 
believes that steps can be taken to increase the safety of drug users on premises.  
 
The purpose of this policy is to further the crime prevention objective and to ensure 
public safety by preventing a tragic loss of life caused by overheating and other 
factors brought about by and associated with drug abuse. 

 
Public Safety:  
 
The Authority may inspect any premises in respect of which an application has been 
made. Officers will determine on the basis of risk which premises require an 
inspection.  They will inform the applicants and arrange an appointment as soon as 
practicable.  
 
Where an inspection is to be carried out, the Authority’s licensing officers will aim to 
reduce inconvenience, confusion and inconsistency by co-ordinating inspections and 
visits along with representatives of the relevant Responsible Authorities.  
 
A premises licence will not normally be granted unless the premises meets the 
statutory and any reasonable additional requirements of the Responsible Authorities.  
 
It is acknowledged that the Act covers a wide range of types of premises including 
cinemas, concert halls, theatres, pubs, night clubs, private members’ clubs, shops, 
restaurants and takeaways. Each type of premises has different risks associated with 
it. It is essential that applicants assess all of the risks presented by their premises 
and proposes practical steps to ensure the safety of staff and customers. 
 
The Authority considers it best practice for all applicants to assess the risks in 
relation to the following issues.  
 

 Promotion of responsible drinking  

 Awareness of drink spiking  

 Zero tolerance drug policies including the appropriate use of 
searching/amnesty boxes to combat drug crime  

 Assessment of the safe capacity for the venue and adequate monitoring and 
control measures to avoid overcrowding determined by the fire risk 
assessment 

 Regular removal of all glasses and bottles  

 Specific precautions for the use of special effects  

 Adequate provision for ventilation/temperature control  

 Assessment, monitoring and management of noise exposure  

 Assessment for crowd dynamics  

 Safety of gas and electrical services  

 Fire safety and emergency lighting  

 Easy accessible free drinking water  

 Sanitation 

 Safe seating 

Page 86



 

 

 Page 
10 

 
  

 Maintenance records of premises and equipment demonstrating compliance 
with statutory requirements any procedural requirements of relevant 
organisations (where such conditions will not duplicate requirements under 
existing legislation), for example electrical safety, fire alarm, emergency 
lighting, ceiling certificate etc. 

 
The Authority expects premises that are open to customers to meet the highest 
standards of the relevant organisations in order to best secure the safety of staff and 
customers. This is also one of the licensing objectives. The Authority believes that 
customers should feel confident that when they enter premises they will be safe. 

 
Prevention of Public Nuisance: 
 
Practical steps to consider include:  
 

 Assessment of the likelihood of nuisance affecting local communities through 
an assessment of the location of premises, character of the surrounding area 
and the proximity to residential and other sensitive premises.  Nuisance could 
be from noise, odour or light 

 Latest admission times  

 Measures for the limitation of noise emissions from the premises.  These may 
include as appropriate noise limitation devices, sound insulation, whether 
windows are to be opened, the installation of acoustic lobbies and double 
glazing  

 Measures to deal with queuing, where necessary  

 Use and management of outdoor areas  

 Measures to deal with dispersal of customers from the premises as 
necessary, including the employment of door supervisors, use of dedicated 
taxi firms, notices in the premises requesting customers to respect neighbours  

 Winding down periods particularly in public houses and nightclubs etc. 

 Disposal of waste, particularly glass  

 Use and maintenance of plant, including air extraction and ventilation systems  

 Litter collection in vicinity  

 Consideration of an adequate traffic management plan  

 Noise from deliveries/collections/waste collections  

 Odour and light nuisance  

 Measures to supervise customers use of beer gardens, smoking and external 
seating areas  

 
In general, the Authority will deal with the issue of licensing hours on the individual 
merits of each application. However, when issuing a licence, stricter conditions are 
likely to be imposed with regard to noise control in the case of premises that are 
situated in predominantly residential areas and other noise sensitive locations. 
 
Location of Premises  
 
The Authority will assess the potential impact of the premises against the 
characteristics of the area in which they are situated. For example, in the event of 
representation being made, there would be close scrutiny of applications for a closing 
time of later than 11pm in respect of premises situated in quiet residential areas with 
low background noise. Greater flexibility on closing times would be considered where 
for example, applicants could demonstrate that: 
 

 there is a high level of accessibility to public transport services; 

Page 87



 

 

 Page 
11 

 
  

 there is an appropriate amount of car parking, readily accessible to the 
premises, and in places where vehicular movement will not cause 
demonstrable adverse impact to local resident; 

 the operating schedule indicates that the applicant is taking appropriate steps 
to comply with the licensing objective of preventing public nuisance; 

 the licensable activities would not be likely to cause adverse impact especially 
on local residents, or that, if there is a potential to cause adverse impact, 
appropriate measures are to be put in place to prevent or minimise that impact. 

 
This part of the policy dealing with opening hours is based on a broad distinction 
between the approach to be taken in certain predominantly commercial areas like parts 
of the town centres and the rest of the District. Any activity involving public 
entertainment or eating or drinking on the premises has the potential to impact 
adversely on the surrounding area due to noise, smells, or congestion on the footway. 
Public nuisance may also be caused by customers being noisy when leaving, leaving 
litter or taking up on-street car parking space needed by residents. The impact of noise 
generated by these activities, especially customers departing either on foot or in cars, 
is particularly intrusive at night when ambient noise levels are much lower.  

 
   

Parts of the District are sensitive to the impact of licensable activities because they are 
either residential in character or close to residential areas. Many shopping areas are 
abutted by residential areas, including housing above commercial premises. The 
impact of traffic and parking related to licensed premises can be considerable. Even 
where a majority of customers arrive on foot or by public transport, the additional 
parking demand may be significant, especially where there are already a number of 
licensed premises. The impact may be felt by local residents in preventing them from 
parking close to their homes and by increasing the danger from traffic in residential 
streets. 
 
However, some commercial areas in the District, such as parts of town centres, may 
be more suitable locations for licensed activities, especially for those, which have late 
opening hours or attract significant numbers of people. In town centres, more 
customers are likely to travel by public transport and the activities may help bring vitality 
to the area after normal shopping hours. The ambient noise levels are also likely to be 
higher in the evening particularly when compared with predominantly residential areas 
so that additional noise may be less objectionable. 
 
An entertainment use attracting large numbers of people should be very close to bus 
routes or taxi ranks, for instance. For the same reasons, the level of public transport 
accessibility will be an important factor in considering any exception to the normal 
closing times in any location. 

  
Noise 

 
In the event of representations being made, the Authority will not normally grant a 
premises licence in terms which are, in its opinion, likely to result in increased noise 
disturbance to people living or working in the vicinity. 
 
In particular, the Authority will give careful consideration to an application for a 
licence for premises situated in an area where there are residences in the vicinity 
which would be adversely affected, such that the proposed hours of operation would 
be likely to result in unreasonable noise disturbance between the hours of 11pm and 
7am. 
 

Page 88



 

 

 Page 
12 

 
  

The Authority expects the applicant to assess the likely sources of noise disturbance 
that could arise due to the proposed use, consider the existing noise context of the 
area and propose practical steps to prevent noise disturbance or minimise its effects. 
 
Potential sources of noise include: 
 

 Sound leakage from the licensed premises (from entertainment provided, 
customers on the premises, mechanical equipment etc)  

 Customers and staff arriving and leaving the premises (including car doors 
slamming) 

 Excessive noise from outside entertainment  

 Customers occupying outside areas for the purpose of smoking and/or the 
consumption of alcohol 
 

The Authority may impose conditions to ensure that appropriate steps are taken to 
minimise noise disturbance. 
 
The prevention of public nuisance is a licensing objective. Noise disturbance can be 
a public nuisance. The Authority is required to promote the licensing objectives. 
Granting a licence in circumstances where nuisance is likely to be caused will 
undermine that objective. The Council recognises that noise from licensed premises 
can cause great disturbance to people living and working near those premises. The 
Authority recognises that noise can be a nuisance  
during the day and at night in both residential and commercial areas and other noise 
sensitive locations if not properly managed or controlled. 
 
Littering  
 
Licences for premises, in particular for the provision of late night refreshment for 
consumption off the premises, will not normally be granted where nuisance is likely to 
be caused by way of litter/food refuse being deposited on streets surrounding the 
premises and such nuisance is expected, due to the nature of the premises and likely 
customers, to exceed the level of nuisance caused by similar premises open during 
the day (for which no licence is required). In their operating schedule, applicants are 
expected to propose practical steps to reduce the likelihood of such problems arising, 
which could include:  
 

 provision of litter bins and smoking bins on/in vicinity of premises 

 litter patrols in the area after premises close 
 
Conditions may be imposed seeking to limit the nuisance caused by litter. 

  
Litter and food waste can be detrimental to the amenity of an area and can also 
represent a public health risk and encourage vermin. This policy seeks to prevent 
such nuisance occurring in promotion of the relevant licensing objective. 

  
Protection of Children from Harm: 
 
The Authority will not normally impose conditions prohibiting the admission of 
children to any premises, unless relevant representations have been made, believing 
this should remain a matter of discretion for the licence holder. Licence holders 
should be aware that there may be restrictions imposed by legislation. In some 
cases, however, it may be necessary to impose conditions designed to protect 
children.  
 

Page 89



 

 

 Page 
13 

 
  

The Authority will take strong measures to protect children from harm where it 
believes from the nature of the premises or proposed activities that harm would be 
likely. 
 

 Limitation of access dependent on nature of activities  

 Limitation on the hours when children may be present 

 Limitation on the age at which children are to be permitted to enter the 
premises 

 Requirements for accompanying adults 

 Use of British Board of Film Classification for film exhibition  

 Robust proof of age provisions to include the prevention of under 18s entering 
the premises where appropriate and the requirement for anyone looking under 
18 to provide proof of age in the form of a photo driving licence, passport or 
accredited proof of age scheme identity card. It is recommended that any 
systems should be accredited and approved by the British retail consortiums 
Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS)or 

 Adoption of the Challenge 21/25 policy  

 Adequate staff training on age restricted sales  

 Adequate warning signage  

 Measures to avoid proxy sales  

 Control measures to protect child performances  

 Records of refusals (refusal log)  

 Suitable design and layout of alcohol display  
 

Where there is provision of entertainment specifically for children (for example, a 
children’s disco) the Authority will require the presence of sufficient adults to control 
the access and egress of the children and assure their safety. 
 
Where children are working in licensed premises or are taking part in any regulated 
entertainment the Authority will expect the responsible adult to obtain guidance from 
Cumbria County Council Children’s Services. 
 
Children are vulnerable and can easily become the victims of crime or get drawn into 
crime. If they were allowed unrestricted access to all licensed premises, they could 
witness or become involved in activities inappropriate for their age. These policies are 
designed to allow flexibility for the licensee, to ensure that where appropriate licensed 
premises are “user friendly” for children but to ensure they are adequately protected. 
The policy seeks to ensure that children are adequately protected whilst still able to 
enjoy licensed premises. 
 
Adult Entertainment  
 
No-one under the age of 18 should be permitted to enter premises whilst entertainment 
of an adult nature is being provided.  
 
Adult entertainment should not take place in such a location as could be viewed from 
the outside of the premises. Advertising of adult entertainment should not include any 
photographs of the entertainment.  
 
In the event of representations being made, applications that include provision for adult 
entertainment to be provided will not normally be granted unless the applicant can 
demonstrate that performers will be safe and that unlawful activities will not take place. 
 

Page 90



 

 

 Page 
14 

 
  

In considering the grant of applications involving striptease, nudity (partial or otherwise) 
and other forms of adult entertainment the Authority will also have regard to the 
increased risk of nuisance to nearby residents and will consider rejecting the 
application or attaching appropriate conditions.  
 
The Authority has adopted Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 in 
relation to the licensing of sex establishments. This will be the subject of a separate 
policy at a later date. 
 
These policies are designed to further the licensing objective of protecting children by 
preventing them being exposed to unsuitable material or acts. They are also designed 
to further the crime prevention and prevention of nuisance objectives by recognising 
the increased risk of nuisance or illegal activities such as performers offering “extras” 
to customers or the plying for trade by prostitutes. 
 
Exhibition of Films 
 
Where the exhibition of films is permitted, the Authority will expect the age restrictions 
of the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) in respect of the films to be exhibited 
to be complied with and will normally impose conditions 
to that effect. Only in exceptional cases will variations to this general rule be granted 
by the Authority and then only with appropriate safeguards. 
 
Applicants will be expected to include in the operating schedule arrangements for 
restricting children from viewing age related films classified according to the 
recommendations of the BBFC.  
 
The Licensing Authority anticipates that the BBFC’s recommendations will apply to the 
vast majority of films shown at licensed premises within the borough. However, in a 
small number of cases, the Licensing Authority may be called upon to exercise its 
powers and issue an overriding recommendation, which would only apply to licensed 
premises within the borough. Such situations can be approximately characterised in 
one of the three groups: 
 
In cases where the Licensing Authority has concerns about a particular film, and has 
of its own volition made an alternate recommendation. This may allow admission of 
persons of a higher or lower age than the recommendation made by the BBFC, or in 
extreme circumstances may prevent the showing of a particular film. This power will 
be rarely, if ever, utilised. 
 
In cases where a film has not been classified by the BBFC. This is likely to be the case 
with small, local, independent films, or foreign films, where a wider UK release is not 
intended. 
 
In cases where the Licensing Authority is approached by a third party asking the 
authority to override a recommendation made by the BBFC. 
 
The third of these groups may include films intended to be shown at ‘parent and baby’ 
screenings, which have increased in popularity in recent years. The Act and Guidance 
are silent on the admission of babies to a film which is subject to an age-related 
recommendation therefore on a strict interpretation of the Act, babies must be excluded 
from such screenings. The Licensing Authority is aware that some cinemas across the 
country have agreed schemes whereby the applicable Licensing Authority makes an 
alternate recommendation in respect of a specified film, expressly permitting the 

Page 91



 

 

 Page 
15 

 
  

admission of babies and very young children to special screenings of that film with only 
parents of such children in attendance. 
 
It is recommended that any premises considering the provision of such screenings 
contacts the Licensing Authority to discuss the proposals first. The authority will 
typically expect special provisions to be made for such screenings, including higher 
light levels and reduced sound levels, in order that parents can better ensure the safety 
of their children.  
 
If satisfied that the content will not present any issues if viewed by children under 24 
months of age, the authority may agree to issue an alternate recommendation, 
consistent with the BBFC’s original classification but including a specific exemption for 
accompanied children below 24 months of age, at screenings advertised and restricted 
to ‘parent and baby’ only. Issues will be assessed on a film-by-film basis, but it is 
anticipated that scenes of strong violence and gore, sex and strong threat will lead to 
greater concern around viewing by children of that age than strong language, mild 
nudity and discriminatory content will. No alternate recommendation would be issued 
unless the authority is satisfied that allowing young children below 24 months of age 
to be admitted will not lead to the child protection licensing objective being undermined.   
 
Licensees will not generally be permitted to exhibit any films that are not classified by 
BBFC without the prior written consent of the Authority.  
 
To achieve consistency and the protection of children the Authority will use the 
guidelines published by the BBFC. Where it is desired to show films not classified by 
the BBFC the Authority will, provided at least 4 weeks’ notice has been given, classify 
the films concerned. Where licensees wish the Authority to reconsider the BBFC 
classification of a film, a similar procedure will be followed. In such circumstances, the 
authority will require the organiser of the exhibition to provide a copy of the film for 
classification purposes, or to arrange a viewing for representatives of the Licensing 
Authority. 
 
The purpose of this policy is to protect children from exposure to films containing adult 
themes including scenes of violence or of a sexual nature inappropriate to their age. 
 
Staging of Plays 
 
The Authority would not wish to impose any restriction as to the plays which may be 
performed on premises licensed for that purpose. The law does not allow any 
conditions to be imposed regarding the nature of plays which may be performed or the 
manner in which they may be performed. However, where a play involves: 
 

 the use of bad language 

 nudity or the portrayal of sexual activity 

 violence 

 drug use, or 

 other ‘adult’ themes or content 
 
The Authority may impose a condition in relation to the age of children who shall be 
permitted to watch the play. In this regard, the Authority will be guided by the BBFC 
guidelines relating to films and would encourage theatres and other venues which 
intend to stage plays to consider each play they intend to stage in the light of those 
guidelines and impose an age restriction where appropriate and/or ensure that 
sufficient information is given to parents in the promotional material for plays to allow 
them to make an informed choice as to whether to allow their child to attend. 

Page 92



 

 

 Page 
16 

 
  

 
This is to protect children from exposure to adult themes or content which is not 
appropriate to their age. 

 

5.4 It is recognised that the licensing function is only one means of securing the delivery 
of the licensing objectives and should not therefore be seen as a cure-all for solving 
all problems within the community.  The Licensing Authority will therefore continue to 
work in partnership with its neighbouring authorities, the Responsible Authorities, the 
Health Authority, local businesses and local people towards the promotion of the 
objectives as outlined.  

 

5.5 The Licensing Authority recognises the knowledge and information Public Health has 
in connection to how alcohol impacts on the health of our communities and how it can 
support agencies in their decision making in particular with the licensing objectives on 
public safety and protection of children from harm. 
 

Designated Premises Supervisors (DPS) 
 

5.6 The main purpose of the ‘designated premises supervisor’ is to ensure that there is 
always one specified individual who can be readily identified for the premises where 
a premises licence is in force.  The Licensing Authority will normally expect the DPS 
to have an active role in the day to day operation of the licensed premises, in 
particular the sale and supply of alcohol.  A DPS does not have to be on site all the 
time, but should authorise individuals to supervise the day-to-day management of the 
premises in his absence.  
 

5.7 A DPS should have sufficient experience and knowledge appropriate for the 
operation under their control.  A DPS should be able to control the activities on site 
and respond quickly and efficiently to problems.  
 

5.8 A DPS should be able to demonstrate that they:  
 

 Have sufficient knowledge and experience appropriate to the premises that 
they intend to control 

 Are able to respond to problems quickly and to meet with responsible 
authorities, local residents and ensure adequate direct management of 
individual premises in a timely manner.  

 

5.9 Following a Police representation the Licensing Authority may refuse an application 
or remove a DPS where:  
 

 A problem premises exists and the DPS is not capable of fulfilling the duties 
and expectations of a DPS 

 A proposed DPS cannot demonstrate their suitability for the licensed premises. 
This is likely where the prevention of crime and disorder will be undermined by 
reason of that person’s known past conduct. A person is likely to be considered 
unsuitable if he has previous unspent convictions for a relevant offence, 
notwithstanding that he has been granted a personal licence. 

 

6.0 Personal licences  

 

6.1 Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a 
person who holds a Personal Licence.  The Act does not require the presence of 
Personal Licence holder at all material times but if any sales are made when a 

Page 93



 

 

 Page 
17 

 
  

Personal Licence holder is not present, then they must have been authorised by 
somebody who holds a Personal Licence.   Regardless of whether a Personal 
Licence holder is present or not he will not be able to escape responsibility for the 
action of those he authorises to make such sales. 
 

6.2 The Council recommends that authorisations for the sale of alcohol be made in 
writing to ensure that those authorised are clear on their legal responsibilities.  Any 
premises which alcohol is sold or supplied may employ one or more Personal 
Licence holders.  This paragraph should be read in conjunction with paragraphs 5.6 
to 5.9 above, which state the role of the Designated Premises Supervisor.  
 

6.3 The Council recognises it has no discretion regarding the granting of Personal 
Licences where:  
 

 The applicant is 18 years or over;  

 Possesses a licensing qualification (accredited at the time of its award);  

 Has not had a licence forfeited in the last five years; and   

 Has not been convicted of a relevant offence 
 
6.4 The Authority will require all applicants to produce a criminal records certificate and, 

from 6 April 2017, evidence of right to work in the UK. Where an applicant’s 
immigration permission is time limited, a licence may still be granted, but it will 
become invalid when the immigration permission expires. 

 
6.5 The police or Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) may make representations to 

the grant of a personal licence to an individual. Such an objection can only be made 
where the applicant has been convicted of a relevant offence or any foreign offence 
or has received a civil penalty after 6 April 2017 and the police or Home Office 
consider that the grant of a licence would undermine the prevention of crime 
objective. 

 
6.6 The Policing and Crime Act 2017 gives licensing authorities from 6 April 2017 the 

power to revoke or suspend personal licences where a licence has already been 
granted and the Authority becomes aware that the licence holder has been convicted 
of a relevant offence or a foreign offence or has been required to pay an immigration 
penalty.  
 

6.4 An application for a Personal Licence to sell alcohol must be made on the form 
specified in government guidance or regulations.  The application form must be 
accompanied by the requisite fee. The applicant should also be able to produce 
evidence of the relevant qualifications.  
 
 

6.5 Where an application discloses relevant unspent convictions the Licensing Authority 
will notify the Chief Officer of Police of that application and the convictions.  The 
police may make representations on the grounds of crime and disorder.  If 
representations are received from the police or Home Office a hearing must be held. 
 

6.6 In considering a new application or licence already granted, the Licensing Authority will 
afford the applicant a right to a hearing before its Licensing Panel.  It will, at such a 
hearing, consider carefully whether the grant of the licence will compromise the 
promotion of the crime prevention objective. Factors the Authority will take into account 
when considering representations in this matter include (but are not limited to) the 
nature and type of offence, how serious the offence was, whether the offence was 

Page 94



 

 

 Page 
18 

 
  

premeditated or was the result of a genuine mistake, the period that has elapsed since 
the offence was committed, whether the applicant abused a position of trust when he 
committed the offence, whether the offence was motivated by discrimination and the 
conduct of the applicant since the commission of the offence and  any mitigating 
circumstances.   
 

6.7 The Authority has a duty when exercising its licensing functions to promote the 
prevention of crime and/or disorder and the other licensing objectives. Unless the 
circumstances are exceptional, granting a licence to an individual with a relevant 
conviction would undermine the Authority’s ability to promote the crime prevention 
objective. Personal licence holders are expected to act in accordance with the law and 
will be key to ensuring that the provisions of the Act, and any conditions attached to a 
premises licence, are complied with. The Authority also has a duty under the Crime 
and Disorder Act 1998 to have regard to the effect on crime and disorder on the 
exercise of any of its functions and to do all it can to prevent such crime and disorder.  

  

Page 95



 

 

 Page 
19 

 
  

7.0 Applications  

 

7.1 When considering applications, the Licensing Authority will have regard to:  

 The Licensing Act and licensing objectives  

 Government guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

 Any supporting regulations  

 Representations made following consultation 

 Duties and obligations under other legislation 

 This statement of Licensing Policy  
 

7.2 This does not, however, undermine the rights of any person to apply under the 2003 
Act for a variety of permissions and have the application considered on its individual 
merits, nor does it override the right of any person to make representations on any 
application to seek a review of a licence or certificate where they are permitted to do 
so under the 2003 Act. 
 

7.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that, in some circumstances, longer licensing 
hours for the sale of alcohol may help to avoid concentrations of customers leaving 
premises simultaneously and reduce the potential for disorder.  It also recognises that 
overly restrictive hours may inhibit the development of the night time economies that 
are important for investment, employment and tourism.  
 

7.4 When considering applications where representations have been made the Licensing 
Authority will seek to balance those factors against its duty to promote the four licensing 
objectives and the rights of residents to peace and quiet.  
 

7.5 This policy is not intended to duplicate existing legislation and other regulatory regimes 
that place duties on employers and operators e.g. Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 
1974, Environmental Protection Act 1990, Equality Act 2010, Building Regulations and 
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005.  The Licensing Authority will therefore 
only impose conditions which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.  
 

7.6 Other than personal licences in all other cases, applicants and those making 
representations in respect of applications to the Licensing Authority have a right of 
appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the decision of the Licensing Authority.  In the 
case of personal licences an appeal must be made to the Magistrates’ Court for the 
petty sessions area in which the Licensing Authority (or part of it) which made the 
decision is situated.  See Appendix 2. 
 

7.7 It should be noted that incomplete applications will not be accepted but returned with 
an explanation of why it is incomplete. Applicants are advised to read thoroughly the 
guidance notes at the back of each application prior to completing the form and to take 
independent legal advice where necessary. Applications should not be deemed as 
accepted and valid when submitted. They will be checked and applicants will be 
informed when the application is deemed valid. By not waiting for this confirmation 
applicants risk the expense of having to re-advertise due to inaccuracies or not 
complying with the statutory timelines of advertising.   
 

7.8 The Licensing Authority welcomes electronic applications made via Allerdale Borough 
Council’s electronic application facility  using the following link 
https://ipa.allerdale.gov.uk/PAforLalpacLIVE/1/WcaHome  

  

Page 96

https://ipa.allerdale.gov.uk/PAforLalpacLIVE/1/WcaHome


 

 

 Page 
20 

 
  

7.9 Community Halls 
  

7.10 The Legislative Reform (Supervision of Alcohol Sales in Church and Village Halls etc.) 
Order 2009 provides that if the management committee wish either to obtain a new 
premises licence authorising the sale of alcohol or to vary their existing licence to add 
the sale of alcohol as a licensed activity they can ask for an alternative condition to be 
imposed which removes the requirement for a DPS to be specified in the licence and 
remove the requirement for each sale of alcohol to made or authorised by a personal 
licence holder. 

 
New and Varied Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates 
  

7.11 Where no premises licence or club premises certificate exists in respect of a premises, 
an application for a new premises licence or club premises certificate must be made to 
enable the carrying out of licensable activities.  
 

7.12 An application to vary an existing premises licence or club premises certificate should 
be made where the proposed variation is in respect of changes to the types of 
licensable activities that are to be undertaken and/or the hours that those activities are 
to take place, or where structural changes are made to the premises.  
 

7.13 Where the proposed variation to a premises licence or club premises certificate is in 
respect of structural alterations, the application must always be accompanied by a plan 
of the proposed alterations in addition to the existing premises licence or club premises 
certificate.   
 

7.14 Where a premises licence holder or club premises wishes to amend a premises licence 
or club premises certificate, the licensing authority will allow for an application to vary 
to be made rather than requiring an application for a new premises licence or 
certificate.  The process the applicant will undertake will depend on the nature of the 
variation and its potential impact on the licensing objectives.  The variation process will 
include:  
 

 Change of name/address of licence holder of designated premises supervisor; 

 Variation of the licence to specify a new individual as designated premises 
supervisor;  

 Request to be removed as designated premises supervisor; 

 Request to disapply the mandatory condition at community premises concerning 
the supervision of alcohol sales by a personal licence holder and the need for a 
designated premises supervisor;  

 An application for minor variation of a premises licence or club premises certificate.   
 

7.15 In addition, when completing section 3 of the application, it is important applicants 
ensure they provide sufficient time for the alterations to be carried out when stating the 
date upon which the variation is to take effect.  This is to ensure that when the premises 
licence or club premises certificate comes into force, the plan to which it relates reflects 
accurately the layout of the building.  
 

7.16 If the actual date when the alterations have been completed differs from that requested, 
applicants must inform the licensing authority so that the premises licence or club 
premises certificate can be issued correctly.  Failure to do so may result in an offence 
being committed under Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 of carrying on a 
licensable activity otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation.   

  

Page 97



 

 

 Page 
21 

 
  

 
Minor Variation Applications 
 

7.17 In August 2009, the Government introduced a streamlined process for applicants to 
make minor variations to their premises licences and club premises certificates where 
the change is considered to have ‘no adverse impact’ on the promotion of any of the 
four licensing objectives.  

 

7.18 Minor variations can be used to:  
 

 Make minor changes to the structure or layout of a premises  

 Make small adjustments to the licensing hours  

 Remove out of date, irrelevant or unenforceable conditions  

 Add or remove certain licensable activities  

 Add volunteered conditions to a premises licence or club premises certificate 
 

7.19 Examples of where the new minor variation process cannot be used:  
 

 Extend the period for which the licence or certificate has effect  

 Specify, in a premises licence, an individual as the premises supervisor  

 Add the sale by retail or supply of alcohol as an activity authorised by a licence 
or certificate 

 To extend the sale by retail or supply of alcohol at any time between 23:00 
hours and 07:00 hours  

 Authorise an increase in the amount of time on any day during which alcohol 
may be sold by retail or supplied  

 Vary a licence for community premises so as to apply the condition that every 
supply of alcohol under that licence must be made or authorised by the 
management committee  

 Substantially vary the premises to which the licence or club premises certificate 
relates 

 

7.20 On receipt of a minor variation application, the Licensing Authority will consult the 
relevant responsible authorities it considers appropriate.  In deciding on the 
application the Licensing Authority will consider any relevant representations 
received within the statutory time limit (ten working days from the day after the 
application was received by the Licensing Authority).  The Licensing Authority will 
either grant the application or refuse it where it considers that the proposed 
application could impact adversely on any of the four licensing objectives.  

  

Page 98



 

 

 Page 
22 

 
  

8.0 Responsible Authorities and Other Persons  

 

8.1 Responsible Authorities and other persons can make representations in a number of 
licensing processes under the Act including applying for a review of a licence. They 
include statutory bodies with professional expertise relevant to the regulation of 
licensable activities, and local residents and businesses that may be affected by the 
provision of such activities. Details of the Responsible Authorities can be found at 
Appendix 6. 

8.2 In addition to responsible authorities, any other person regardless of their geographic 
proximity to the premises may make representation in respect of an application which 
is subject to public notice requirements, or apply for a review of a premises or club 
premises certificate. As well as individuals this provision also allows any company, 
charity, community organisation or similar body, to make representations and apply for 
reviews in their own right.  

 

8.3 The Licensing Authority will consider all representations or review applications 
received from persons other than responsible authorities, but may reject and disregard 
a representation or application, in whole or in part, if it believes that: 

 

 a representation or ground for review is frivolous; 

 a representation or ground for review is vexatious; 

 a representation is not relevant to the likely effect of the grant of the application on 
the promotion of the licensing objectives; 

 a ground for review is not relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives; 

 a ground for review is a repetition of a ground for review or a representation made 
in respect of an earlier application for the same licence or certificate, where a 
reasonable interval has not elapsed since the earlier application.  

 

8.4 For the purposes of the previous paragraph, the Licensing Authority will typically 
consider that a period of 12 months between review or other applications will constitute 
a reasonable interval, although the authority may consider evidence as to why it should 
use a shorter time period on a case-by-case basis. 

 

8.5 The Licensing Authority must also reject any representation which was not given to the 
authority within the prescribed period for the associated application (typically 28 das 
for most applications, although minor variation applications and summary/closure order 
reviews are subject to shorter periods – in all cases, the final date for the submission 
of representations will be displayed on public notices at or near the premises and in a 
local newspaper, which will be checked by the authority).   
 

8.6 Representations and review applications may also be made by persons who are 
democratically elected, such as borough, county, town or parish councillors, or a 
Member of Parliament. Such representatives are free to make representations and 
review applications in their own right, and no specific evidence of being asked to 
represent any other person will be required.  
 

8.7 The Licensing Authority considers that Trading Associations, Trade Unions and 
residents and Tenants’ Associations qualify as other persons. 
 

8.8 The Licensing Authority will not generally view these bodies as other persons unless 
they have a member who can be classed as an Interested Party.  
 

Page 99



 

 

 Page 
23 

 
  

8.9 The Licensing Authority will generally require written evidence that a person is 
authorised to represent other persons in any case other than that is mentioned in 
paragraph 8.5 above.  
 

8.10 Allerdale Borough councillors who have agreed to represent a party to an application 
at a hearing, or who have made a representation in their own right, shall not sit on any 
Licensing Panel considering that application.  

 
Representations  
 

8.11 Any Responsible Authority or other persons may make relevant representations on 
applications for the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate and request 
reviews of licence or certificates that have been granted.  
 

8.12 A representation will only be ‘relevant’ if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the 
licence on the promotion of at least one of the four licensing objectives.  In addition, 
the representation must not be frivolous or vexatious.    
 

8.13 The police may object to the designation of a new designated premises supervisor 
(DPS) where, in exceptional circumstances, they believe that the appointment would 
undermine the crime prevention objective.  
 

8.14 Where the police do object, the licensing authority must arrange for a hearing at which 
the issue can be considered and both parties can put forward their arguments.  The 
2003 Act provides that the applicant may apply for the individual to take up post as 
DPS immediately and, in such cases, the issue would be whether the individual should 
be removed from this post.  The licensing authority considering the matter must restrict 
its consideration to the issue of crime and disorder and give comprehensive reasons 
for its decision.  Either party would be entitled to appeal if their argument is rejected.   
 

8.15 The 2003 Act also provides for the suspension and forfeiture of personal licences by 
the courts following convictions for relevant offences, including breaches of licensing 
law.  The police can at any stage after the appointment of a DPS seek a review of a 
premises licence on any ground relating to the licensing objectives if problems arise 
relating to the performance of a DPS.   
 

8.16 The Police and Environmental Health department may make representations in 
respect of a notification of a temporary event notice on the basis of any of the licensing 
objectives.   
 

8.17 Where relevant representations are made, the Licensing Authority must provide copies 
of those representations to the applicant or his/her representative.  The Licensing 
Authority accepts that in exceptional circumstances a person may not wish for his/her 
personal details to be disclosed to the applicant.  In these circumstances a person may 
wish to contact a local representative such as a ward, parish or town councillor or any 
other locally recognised body, such as a residents association, to make the 
representation on their behalf. The council is not able to accept anonymous 
representations. 
 

8.18 Where the Licensing Authority considers that a relevant representation has been made 
and that an exceptional circumstance exists, details of the name and address may be 
withheld from the copy of the representation that is provided to the applicant or his/her 
representative.    
 

Page 100



 

 

 Page 
24 

 
  

If representations are made when considering an application for a licence, the 
Authority should take into account the following factors in assessing its likely impact 
on the licensing objectives in addition to other relevant matters:  
 

 the nature of activities proposed; 

 the number of customers likely to attend the premises and the nature of the 
activities expected; 

 the location of the premises; 

 the proposed hours of operation; 

 the level of public transport accessibility for customers either arriving at or 
leaving the premises and the likely means of public or private transport that 
will be used by the customers; 

 the physical and accessible nature of the premises; 

 the level of likely car parking demand in relation to the use of the premises in 
comparison with the existing situation and the likely effect on the movement 
of priority traffic;  

 the cumulative impact of licensed premises in an area;  

 the scope for mitigating any impact; 

 how often the activity is to occur. 
 
In considering any application where premises are already licensed, or have in the 
past been licensed for any of the licensable activities (under this or previous 
legislation), the Authority will take into account any evidence from a Responsible 
Authority or any other person of demonstrable adverse impact from the activity in the 
past.  If adverse impact has been caused, it will consider whether appropriate 
measures have been proposed or put into effect by the applicant to mitigate that 
adverse impact. The Authority will also consider any changes of circumstances since 
the past problems occurred. 
 
The prime purpose of this policy is to promote the licensing objectives. In furtherance 
of this aim, the policy lists particular matters that the Authority will take into account in 
considering whether a licensed activity is likely to cause an adverse impact. The aim 
of the policy is, therefore, to achieve a balanced approach to these issues. 
 

8.19 In all cases, applicants and those making representations that are genuinely aggrieved 
by a decision of the Licensing Panel are entitled to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court 
against the decision of the panel.  
 

8.20 Where the Responsible Authorities or other persons do not raise any relevant 
representations about the application made to the Licensing Authority, the Licensing 
Authority will grant the premises licence or club premises certificate subject only to 
conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule and any mandatory 
conditions prescribed by the Licensing Act 2003.  

  

Page 101



 

 

 Page 
25 

 
  

Review of Licences  
 

8.21 Where possible and appropriate, the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities 
will give early warning to licence holders of any concern about problems identified at 
premises and of the need for improvement.   
 

8.22 Any Responsible Authority or other person may apply for a review of a premises licence 
or a club premises certificate by serving a notice containing details of the application 
on the holder of a licence or certificate and to each of the Responsible Authorities.  
 

8.23 An application for review will be only ‘relevant’ if the grounds upon which it is made 
relates to the promotion of at least one of the four licensing objectives and is not 
frivolous, vexatious or repetitious.  An evidentiary basis will be required to be presented 
to the Licensing Authority.  
 

8.24 Where other person applies for a review, the Licensing Authority must be satisfied that 
a review is relevant.  There is no appeal to the decision of the Licensing Authority other 
than by way of Judicial Review.   

 

8.25 No more than one review from a person other than responsible authorities will normally 
be permitted within any 12 month period on similar grounds except in exceptional and 
compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order.   

 
Conditions  
 

8.26 Licensing is about the appropriate control of licensed premises, qualifying clubs, 
temporary events and the people who manage them or hold personal licences within 
the terms of the 2003 Act.   
 

8.27 The Licensing Authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been 
engaged following the making of relevant representations and it has been satisfied at 
a hearing of the necessity to impose conditions due to the representations raised.  It 
may then only impose such conditions that are required by law and/or  are necessary 
to promote the licensing objectives arising out of consideration of the representations 
and are proportionate 
 

8.28 The Licensing Authority actively promotes the benefits of partnership working between 
the Council and local businesses to enhance business operations and thereby achieve 
the community benefits of minimisation of waste, enhancement of the street scene, 
promotion of community safety, reduction of the fear of crime and the encouragement 
of tourism and inward investment.   

 

8.29 To maximise the efficiency of administering licences and reduce the necessity for 
hearings, the Licensing Authority will actively encourage applicants and clubs to 
consult with Responsible Authorities and seek professional guidance from Council 
services, when operating schedules are being prepared to allow for proper liaison to 
take place in such areas as noise reduction, CCTV, refuse and litter etc., to avoid 
representations being necessary.  The Licensing Authority accepts that while some 
applicants may find it useful to contact the Responsible Authorities and Council 
services for advice and professional assistance, others will not need to do so, and that 
applications cannot be refused on the basis that such consultation has not taken place.   
 

8.30 Where relevant representations are made, the Licensing Authority will seek to make 
objective judgements as to whether conditions may need to be attached to various 

Page 102



 

 

 Page 
26 

 
  

authorisations and others in possession of relevant authorisations, to secure 
achievement of the licensing objectives.  
 

8.31 Any conditions arising from the operating schedule or as a result of representations 
will focus primarily upon the direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed 
premises on those attending the premises and members of the public living, working 
or otherwise engaged in normal activity in the areas concerned.  It will cover matters 
that are within control of the individual licensees.  

 

8.32 If an applicant volunteers prohibition or restriction in his/her operating schedule 
because his/her own risk assessment had determined such prohibition or restriction to 
be appropriate, such volunteered prohibitions or restrictions will become conditions 
attached to the licence or certificate and will be enforceable as such.  
 

8.33 The Licensing Authority recognises that all applications should be considered on an 
individual basis and any condition attached to such a licence will be tailored to each 
individual premises, to avoid the imposition of disproportionate and other burdensome 
conditions on those premises.  Standard conditions, other than mandatory conditions, 
will, therefore, be avoided and no condition will be imposed that cannot be shown to 
be necessary for promotion of the licensing objective.  

 

9.0 Temporary Event Notices (TEN’s)  

 

9.1 The Act sets out the legal requirements relating to TEN’s.  A TEN is a notification 
given by an individual to the Licensing Authority where it is proposed to use premises 
for one or more licensable activities during a period not exceeding 168 hours and can 
be used to authorise relatively small-scale ad hoc events held in any premises 
involving no more than 499 people at any one time.  
 

9.2 A TEN is typically used to:  
 

 Authorise a licensable activity at a premises not currently licensed e.g. selling 
alcohol at a fete  

 Temporarily extending the hours for providing a licensed activity at an existing 
licensed premises for a specific event  

 Provide for licensable activities not authorised by the existing licence.  
 

9.3 The premises user must give the Licensing Authority notice of the proposed event 
and give a copy of the notice to the Police and Environmental Health. 
 

9.4 Where TEN or any part of it, is submitted in writing, it is the responsibility of the notice 
giver to ensure that a copy of it has been sent to the Police and Environmental Health 
as stipulated in the Act.  Where a TEN has been submitted electronically copies will 
be forwarded to the responsible authorities by the Local Authority.   
 

9.5 A minimum of 10 clear working days’ notice prior to the event needs to be given.  
This does NOT include the date of submission, the date of the event, weekends or 
bank holidays.  In a significant number of cases, this time period does not allow 
sufficient time for the premises user to liaise with the Police or Environmental Health 
and other relevant bodies to ensure that the event passes off safely with minimum 
disturbance to local residents.  Therefore, the Licensing Authority will normally expect 
that the TEN will be submitted no later than 28 days before the planned event.  The 
giving of 28 days’ notice allows for responsible discussions to take place with the 
Police and Environmental Health.  The Licensing Authority will consider any breach 

Page 103



 

 

 Page 
27 

 
  

of previous informal agreements to be an important matter when considering an 
objection to a TEN.  
 

9.6 Late TENs can be submitted up to five working days but no earlier than nine working 
days before the event due to take place, and unless given electronically to the 
Licensing Authority, must also be sent to the Police and Environmental Health.  A 
TEN given less than five days before the event to which it relates will be returned as 
void and the activities to which it relates will not be authorised.  
 

9.7 A key difference between standard and late TENs is the process following an 
objection notice from the Police or Environmental Health.  Where an objection notice 
is received in relation to a standard TEN the Licensing Authority must hold a hearing 
to consider the objection, unless all parties agree that a hearing is unnecessary.  If 
the Police or Environmental Health gives an objection to a late TEN the notice will not 
be valid and the event will not go ahead as there is no scope for a hearing or the 
application of any existing conditions.  
 

9.8 The Licensing Authority will also actively encourage the premises user to notify other 
relevant agencies such as the Fire Authority (crowd safety and management) in order 
to obtain expert advice on how best to minimise the risk of injury and public nuisance.  
A TEN does not exempt the premises user from any requirements under planning law 
who should ensure that the appropriate planning consent is in place.    
 

10.0 Sexual Entertainment Venue  
 

Where premises are to be used on 11 or more occasions within a 12 month period for 
relevant sexual entertainment, the premises must also be licensed as a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue. Relevant sexual entertainment includes lap dancing, pole 
dancing, table dancing, strip shows, peep shows and live sex shows.  This activity 
will be the subject of a separate policy. 
 
This licence only applies in areas where Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009 
has been adopted. This legislation has been adopted by this Authority.   

  

Page 104



 

 

 Page 
28 

 
  

11.0 Cumulative Impact Policy  

 
Need for Licensed Premises  
 

11.1 There can be confusion about the difference between “need” and the “cumulative 
impact” of premises on the licensing objectives.  “Need” concerns the commercial 
demand for another pub or restaurant or hotel.  This is not a matter for a Licensing 
Authority in discharging its licensing functions or for its Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 

Cumulative Impact of a Concentration of Licensed Premises 
 

11.2 “Cumulative Impact” means the potential impact upon the promotion of the licensing 
objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area.  The 
cumulative impact of licensed premises on the promotion of the licensing objectives is 
a proper matter for a Licensing Authority to consider in developing its Statement of 
Licensing Policy.  
 

11.3 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that a concentration of licensed premises in a 
particular area can result in an increased number of people walking through or 
congregating in streets during the night with the potential impact of an increase in 
crime, anti-social behaviour, noise pollution and other disturbance to residents, 
together with an increase in littering or fouling.  In such cases, the amenity of local 
residents can be placed under severe pressure but may not be attributable to any 
individual premises.   
 

11.4 The Licensing Authority can only adopt a special policy on cumulative impact if there 
is evidence that a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area 
are resulting, or likely to result, in unacceptable levels of crime and disorder or public 
nuisance.  
 

11.5 The Licensing Authority, having regard to the evidence currently available, considers 
that there is no particular part of the borough causing a cumulative impact on any part 
of the licensing objective.  
 

11.6 However, the cumulative impact of licensed premises in a particular area may, at a 
future time, on representation from residents or businesses or a responsible authority, 
trigger the consideration of whether any additional licences or substantial variations to 
existing licences, to increase such aspect as capacity or operating hours, would lead 
to an unacceptable saturation in an area.  The onus will be upon the objectors to 
provide evidence that additional licences or the variation of existing licences would 
produce the cumulative impact claimed.  
 

11.7 Other mechanisms for controlling cumulative impact include:  

 Planning controls 

 Positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment in 
partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other departments 
of the local authority 

 The provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi ranks, provision 
of public conveniences open late night, street cleaning and litter patrols  

 Powers of local authorities to designated parts of the local authority areas 
where alcohol may not be consumed publicly, namely the issuing of Public 
Space Protection Orders to these areas 

 Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices  

Page 105



 

 

 Page 
29 

 
  

 The prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such 
premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk  

 The confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in areas with Public Space 
Protection Orders  

 Police powers to close down instantly for up to 24 hours any licenced premises 
to temporary event on grounds of disorder, the likelihood of disorder or noise 
emanating from the premises causing a nuisance  

 The power of police, other responsible authorities or local resident or business 
to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question.  

 
Advice and Guidance  
 

11.8 The Licensing Authority recognises the valuable cultural, social and business 
importance that premises and events requiring a licence under the Licensing Act 2003 
provide and welcomes the diversity of activities that are provided by licence holders.  
For this reason, pre-application discussions will be encouraged to assist applicants to 
develop their operating schedule.  The Licensing Authority and the Responsible 
Authorities will offer as much advice and guidance to applicants as resources permit.  
 

11.9 The Licensing Authority will also seek to liaise with applicants and/or mediate between 
applicants and others who may make representations, to achieve a satisfactory 
outcome for all involved, wherever possible and where resources permit.  Where an 
applicant considers that mediation and liaison may be likely or probable, it is 
recommended that he/she discusses his/her proposal with the Licensing Team and 
those from who they think representations are likely prior to submitting an application.  
Once an application has been logged, there are statutory timescales imposed upon 
the application and determination process, which restricts the opportunity for such 
discussions, liaison and mediation.  

 

12.0 Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMRO) 

 

12.1 The power for Licensing Authorities to make, vary or revoke an EMRO set out in 
sections 172A to 172E of the Act.  
 

12.2 An EMRO enables a Licensing Authority to prohibit the sale of alcohol for a specified 
time period between the hours of 12am and 6am in the whole or part of its area, if it is 
satisfied that this would be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 

12.3 EMROs are designed to address recurring problems such as high levels of alcohol 
related crime and disorder in specific areas at specific times; serious public nuisance 
and other instances of alcohol related anti-social behaviour which is not directly 
attributable to specific premises.  
 

12.4 It is the Council’s intention to support businesses rather than hinder them whilst 
ensuring promotion of the licensing objectives.  However where this has deemed to 
fail then an EMRO could be considered as a possible solution.  
 

12.5 An EMRO:  

 Applies to the supply of alcohol authorised by premises licences, club premises 
certificate and temporary event notices  

 Applies for any period beginning at or after 12am and ending at or before 6am.  It 
does not have to apply on every day of the week and can apply for different time 
periods or unlimited time period (e.g. an EMRO could be introduced for a few 
weeks to apply to a specific event) 

Page 106



 

 

 Page 
30 

 
  

 Applies to the whole or any part of the Licensing Authority’s area  

 Will not apply to any premises on New Year’s Eve (defined as 12:00 a.m. to 
06:00 a.m. on 1 January every year) 

 Will not apply to the supply of alcohol to residents by accommodation providers 
between 12am and 6am, provided the alcohol is sold through mini-bars/room 
service 

 Will not apply to a relaxation of licensing hours by virtue of an order made under 
section 172 of the Act 

 
EMRO Request  
 

12.6 It is expected that the need of an EMRO may be identified by a number of different 
organisations.  For example the request for an EMRO may originate from Cumbria 
Police, Environmental Health or residents association.  It may come via another 
Responsible Authority.  It is likely more than one organisation may be involved in the 
process.  
 

12.7 It is anticipated that the request would be referred to Licensing where a designated 
procedure will be applied to determine if an EMRO is appropriate.  If appropriate, the 
request would be referred to the Licensing Committee.  Members would be supplied 
with evidence of the issues being experienced in the area in support of the EMRO.  
The Licensing Committee will decide if, on the strength of the evidence provided, that 
an EMRO is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and if further 
work is to be undertaken to support the case.  Members may decide that other 
measures would be more effective in dealing with the problems, or that licensing 
holders should engage with the authorities in an attempt to rectify matters before the 
request is considered further.  

 
Evidence 

  

12.8 Section 182 Guidance to Licensing Authorities states that “The Licensing Authority 
should be satisfied that it has sufficient evidence to demonstrate that its decision is 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  This requirement should be 
considered in the same manner as other licensing decisions, such as the 
determination of applications for the grant of premises licences.  The Licensing 
Authority should consider the evidence from partners, including responsible 
authorities and local community safety partnerships, alongside its own evidence, to 
determine whether an EMRO would be appropriate for the promotion of licensing 
objectives.”  
 

12.9 The level of evidence the Licensing Committee will consider to support an EMRO 
includes but is not necessarily limited to:  

 

 Police evidence of reported alcohol related crime 

 Nuisance statistics compiled from complaints made to Environmental Health in 

relation to noise, odour and litter nuisance 

 Data gathered from complaints made to Licensing on matters which affect the 

licensing objectives  

 Anecdotal evidence from residents organisations, ward members and other 

representatives of people living in specific areas 

 Evidence obtained during the public consultation and associated public meetings  

 

Page 107



 

 

 Page 
31 

 
  

12.10 In addition the Section 182 guidance suggests other sources of evidence such as 
health related statistics, e.g. alcohol-related emergency attendance and hospital 
admissions  

 

12.11 This should, in part be provided by the organisation or group who are proposing an 
EMRO should be in force.  
 

12.12 Once the Licensing Committee is satisfied that an EMRO is required to address the 
issues in an area, and all other measures have been tried and failed to address these 
issues, the formal process of implementing an EMRO will begin.  The design of the 
EMRO will include:  

 

 The days (and periods on those days) on which the EMRO would apply 

 The area to which the EMRO would apply  

 The period for which the EMRO would apply  

 The date from which the proposed EMRO would apply  
 
Consultation   
 

12.13 The proposed EMRO will be advertised for at least 42 days.  The proposal will be 
published on the Council’s website and in a local newspaper.  A notice will be sent to 
all affected people in the area who hold a premises licence or a club premises 
certificate, or people who use TENs or who hold a provisional statement.  A notice 
will be displayed in the area, and sent to responsible authorities and adjacent 
licensing authorities.  
 

12.14 Anyone affected by the EMRO has 42 days in which to make a representation on any 
aspect of the EMRO design.  If relevant representations are received then a hearing 
will be held to consider them.  If there are a number of representations, the Licensing 
Authority may consider whether to hold the hearing over several days.  The hearing 
will commence within 30 working days of the end of the notice period.  
 

12.15 As a result of the hearing the Licensing Authority has three options:  
 

 To determine that the proposed EMRO is appropriate for promotion of the 

licensing objectives  

 To determine that the proposed EMRO is not appropriate and therefore the 

process should be ended  

 To determine that the proposed EMRO should be modified.  In this case it may 

be necessary to advertise again  

Formal Decision  

 

12.16 Once the Licensing Authority is satisfied that the proposed order is appropriate for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives, its determination will be put to full Council 
for its final decision.   Once the EMRO is made, the authority will send a notice to all 
affected persons and make it available for 28 days on the website.  
 

12.17 A variation or revocation of an order will follow the same process.  However an order 
could be applied for a specified time and in this case the order ceases to apply on the 
final day.  
 

12.18 Once an EMRO is in place, the Licensing Authority will update this policy as soon as 
possible to include reference to the EMRO in this section.  

Page 108



 

 

 Page 
32 

 
  

 

12.19 There are currently no EMROs in place for this area.  
 

13.0 Late Night Levy 
 

13.1 This is a power conferred on Licensing Authorities by the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011 which enables a levy to be charged to premises that are 
licensed to sell alcohol late at night in the authority’s area, as a means of raising a 
contribution towards the costs of policing the late-night economy.  The option of 
introducing such a levy will be kept under review by the Council and would not be 
introduced without the required consultation. 
 

14.0 Compliance 

14.1 Allerdale Borough Council delivers a wide range of compliance services aimed at 
safeguarding the environment and the community, and at providing a ‘level playing 
field’ on which businesses can trade fairly.  The administration and compliance of the 
licensing regime is one of these services.  Specifically, Allerdale Borough Council is 
committed to accordance with the principles of good enforcement practice by carrying 
out its regulatory functions in a fair, open and consistent manner.  

 

14.2 The Licensing Authority recognises the interest of both citizens and businesses and 
will work closely with partners to assist licence holders to comply with the law and the 
four licensing objectives that it seeks to promote.  However, proportionate but firm 
action will be taken against those who commit serious offences or break the law 
consistently. 
 

14.3 In the event of the Licensing Authority receiving evidence of an offence under the 
Licensing Act 2003, it will consider what action should be taken this may take the form 
of informal action (advice and warnings), the issue of a caution or if permitted a fixed 
penalty notice or prosecution.  What action is taken will depend on the circumstances 
of each case and will take into account the seriousness of the matter and past history.  
Formal action by way of prosecution will be a last resort and proportionate to the 
degree of risk.  
 

14.4 The Licensing Authority works in partnership with all of the Responsible Authorities 
under the Act on compliance issues.  This joint working provides for the targeting of 
resources towards high risk premises and activities that require greater attention, while 
providing a lighter touch in respect of low risk premises that are operated well.  

  

Page 109



 

 

 Page 
33 

 
  

15.0 Administration, Exercise and Delegation of functions  

 

15.1 The Licensing Authority will be involved in a wide range of licensing decisions and 
functions and has established a Licensing Committee to administer them.  

 

15.2 Appreciating the need to provide a speedy, efficient and cost-effective service to all 
parties involved in the licensing process, the Committee has delegated certain 
decisions and functions and has established a number of Licensing Panels to deal 
with them.  
 

15.3 Further, with many of the decisions and functions being purely administrative in 
nature, the grant of non-contentious applications, including for example, those licence 
and certificates where no representations have been made, has been delegated to 
Licensing Authority officers.  
 

15.4 The Licensing Committee will consist of 15 Councillors.  Licensing Panels of three 
Councillors are expected to consider the bulk of applications where a hearing is 
necessary.  Ward Councillors will not sit on Panels involving an application within 
their ward.  
 

15.5 Every determination of a licensing application by the Licensing Committee or 
Licensing Panel shall be accompanied with clear, cogent reasons for the decision.  
 

15.6 It is expected that the authority’s licensing officers will deal with the majority of 
licence applications and will decide whether representations are irrelevant, frivolous 
or vexatious.  The person making a representation, which is considered to be 
frivolous or vexatious, will be given written reasons for that decision.  
 

15.7 The authority will ensure that members and officers are appropriately trained to carry 
out their duties under the Act.  
 

15.8 The table at Appendix 1 sets out the agreed delegation of decisions and functions to 
Licensing Committee, Panel and Officers.  
 

15.9 Officers, a Licensing Panel and even the full Licensing Committee may decline to 
exercise their delegated powers in any particular case.  On such occasions, officers 
may refer a matter to a Panel, the Panel to full Committee and the full Committee to 
the full Council.  
 

  

Page 110



 

 

 Page 
34 

 
  

APPENDIX 1 – Table of Delegated functions 
 

MATTER TO BE DEALT 
WITH 

 

FULL COMMITTEE PANEL OFFICERS 

Application for personal  
licence  

 If a representation 
received 
 

If no representation 
received 
 

  
 

  
 

 

Application for premises  
licence/club premises 
Certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation 
received 
 

If no relevant 
representation 
received 

Application for provisional statement  If a relevant 
representation 
received 

If no relevant 
representation 
received 

Application to vary  
premises licence/club  
premises certificate  

 If a relevant 
representation 
received 

If no relevant 
representation 
received  

Decision whether to consult other 
Responsible Authorities on a minor 
variation application 

  All cases 

Application to vary premises licence/club 
premises certificate by way of a minor 
variation 

  All cases 

Application to vary designated 
 premises supervisor 

  
If a police 
representation  

 
All other cases 

Request to be removed  
as designated premises  
supervisor 

   
All cases 

Application for transfer of  
premises licence 

 If a representation 
received 

All other cases 

Application for Interim 
Authorities 

 If a  representation 
received 

All other cases 

Application to review premises 
licence/club premises  
certificate 

 
 

All cases  

Decision on whether a 
complaint is irrelevant, 
frivolous, vexatious, etc  

   
All cases 

Decision to object when local authority is a 
consultee and not the relevant authority 
considering the application 

 All cases  
 

Determination of a representation to a 
temporary event notice 

 All cases  

Determination of application to vary 
premises licence at community premises 
to include alternative licence condition 

 If a relevant 
representation received 

All cases 

Determination of film classification   All cases 

Page 111



 

 

 Page 
35 

 
  

 
A Full Committee will consist of fifteen members, with a quorum of four.   
A Panel will consist of three members.  
  

Page 112



 

 

 Page 
36 

 
  

APPENDIX 2 – Appeals Procedure 
 
1. Other than in the case of personal licences, an appeal has to be made to the Magistrates’ 

Court Service, West Allerdale Magistrates Court, Hall Brow, Workington. In the case of 
personal licences, the appeal must be made to the magistrates’ court for the petty sessions 
area in which the licensing authority (or any part of it) which made the decision is situated. 

 
2. An appeal has to be commenced by the giving of a notice of appeal by the appellant to the 

justices’ chief executive for the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days beginning with 
the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision to be 
appealed against. 

 
3. The licensing authority will always be a respondent to the appeal, but in cases where a 

favourable decision has been made for an applicant licence holder, club or premises user 
against the representations of a responsible authority or an interested party or the 
objections of the chief officer of police, the holder of the premises or personal licence or 
club premises certificate or the person who gave an interim authority notice or the premises 
user will also be a respondent to the appeal and the person who made the relevant 
representation or the chief officer of police will be the appellants. 

 
4. On determining an appeal, the court may: 
 

 dismiss the appeal; 
 

 substitute for the decision appealed against any other decision which could have 
made by the licensing authority; or 

 

 remit the case to the licensing authority to dispose of it in accordance with the 
direction of the court. 

 
5. The court may make such order as to costs as it thinks fit. 
 
6. The court, on hearing any appeal, may therefore review the merits of the   decision on the 

facts and consider points of law or address both. 
 
  

Page 113



 

 

 Page 
37 

 
  

APPENDIX 3 - Guides of Best Practice   
 
1. Health and Safety Executive Website - The Event Safety Guide – A guide to health, 

safety and welfare at music and similar events (HSG 195) (“The Purple Book”) ISBN 
978-0-7176-2453-9 and other guidance documents www.hse.gov.uk  

 
2. Guide to Fire Precautions in existing places of entertainment and like premises (The 

Stationery Office) (“The Primrose Guide”) ISBN 0-11-340907-9. 
 
3. Managing Crowds Safely in public venues ISBN 978-0-11-702074-0 
 
4. 5 steps to Risk Assessment: Case Studies (HSE 2006) INDG 163(rev2) 
 
5. The Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds (“The Green Guide”) 

www.safetyatsportsgrounds.org.uk/publications/green-guide  
 
6. Good Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs 2003 – The 

Institute of Acoustics www.ioa.org.uk/publications  
 
7. Safer Nightlife – London Drugs Policy Forum 

http://217.154.230.218/NR/rdonlyres/E4E0FE3A-9F8E-4182-AFBF-
31C83E74C03A/0/SS_LDPF_safer_nightlife.pdf  

 
8. Talk to Frank – The a-z of drugs www.talktofrank.com  
 
9. The Portman Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of 

Alcoholic Drinks 2006 –  
 http://www.portman-group.org.uk/?pid=3&level=1  
 
10. British Board of Film  - Classification Guidelines – www.bbfc.co.uk/what-

classification/guidelines  
 
11. HSE Guide – The Radiation Safety of laser installation used for display purposes 

[HS(G)95] HSE Books ISBN 0-7-76-0691 www.hse.gov.uk 
 
12. The Government Alcohol Strategy – www.gov.uk 
 
13. Alcohol Concern  – www.alcoholconcern.org.uk 
 
14. Safety Guidance for Street Arts, Carnivals, Processions and large scale 

performances Independent Street Arts Network –www.streetartsnetwork.org.uk 
 
15. Point of Sale Promotions 
 Risk Assessment to Combating Violence in Licensed Premises 
 Licensed Property: Noise Control 
 British Beer & Pub Association -  www.beerandpub.com  
 

Page 114

http://www.hse.gov.uk/
http://www.safetyatsportsgrounds.org.uk/publications/green-guide
http://www.ioa.org.uk/publications
http://217.154.230.218/NR/rdonlyres/E4E0FE3A-9F8E-4182-AFBF-31C83E74C03A/0/SS_LDPF_safer_nightlife.pdf
http://217.154.230.218/NR/rdonlyres/E4E0FE3A-9F8E-4182-AFBF-31C83E74C03A/0/SS_LDPF_safer_nightlife.pdf
http://www.talktofrank.com/
http://www.portman-group.org.uk/?pid=3&level=1
http://www.bbfc.co.uk/what-classification/guidelines
http://www.bbfc.co.uk/what-classification/guidelines
http://www.hse.gov.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/
http://www.beerandpub.com/


 

 

 Page 
38 

 
  

16. Fire Risk Assessment –  
www.communities.gov.uk/fire/firesafety/firesafetylaw 

 
17. DCMS – Alcohol Licensing www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing 
 
18. National Pubwatch www.nationalpubwatch.org.uk 

 

This is not intended to be an exhaustive list of reference guides but is offered for guidance and may 
be revised.  Where a proposed activity is not covered by the above, every effort should be made to 
research current best practice guidance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 115

http://www.communities.gov.uk/fire/firesafety/firesafetylaw
http://www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing
http://www.nationalpubwatch.org.uk/


 

 

 Page 
39 

 
  

 
Appendix 4 – List of Consultees 

Allerdale Borough Council 
All Elected Members 
All Town/Parish Councils 
Environmental Health Unit 
Planning and Development Service 
Website – licensing and consultation pages 
  
 
Housing Associations 
 
Cumbria Police 
Chief Constable, Carleton Hall, Penrith 
West Cumbria HQ, Hall Brow, Workington 
British Transport Police, Citadel Station, Court Square, Carlisle 
 
Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service 
 
Cumbria County Council Children’s Services 
 
Cumbria County Council Trading Standards 
 
Health and Safety Executive 
 
Cumbria County Council Public Health 
 
All Responsible Authorities listed in appendix 6 
 
 
  

Page 116



 

 

 Page 
40 

 
  

Appendix 5  
 
Links between the licensing policy and other Council strategies and policies: 
 
Council Plan – This licensing policy contributes towards the Council achieving its strategic 
objectives by supporting inclusive communities where visitors and residents can enjoy a 
range of cultural activities and by ensuring that communities can stay safe and feel safe in 
their everyday lives and to support businesses.    
 
Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy – The implementation of the licensing policy reduces 
crime and disorder related to licensable activities. 
 
Local Transport Plan – By promoting safe access to licensed events, this helps support the 
LTP. 
 
Cumbria Community Strategy – This assists in achieving safe, strong and inclusive 
communities. 
 
Cultural Strategy – Licensable activities are an essential part of a vibrant and diverse culture.    
 

Page 117



 

 

 Page 
41 

 
  

Appendix 6 – Responsible Authorities 

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES 

Name And Address Telephone No. Email Address 

Allerdale Borough Council 
Licensing Department 
Allerdale House 
New Bridge Road 
Workington 
CA14 3YJ 

0303 123 1702 
licensing@allerdale.gov.uk 
 

Chief of Police 
Cumbria Constabulary 
West Cumbria H.Q. 
Hall Brow 
Workington 
Cumbria 
CA14 4EH 

0300 124 0113 
Admin-WestBCU@cumbria.pnn.police.uk 
 

Cumbria Fire and Rescue 
The Divisional Officer 
Safer and Stronger Communities 
Cumbria County Council 
Workington Community Fire Station 
Moorclose Road 
Workington 
Cumbria 
CA14 5BF 

01900 706055 
workington.technical@cumbriacc.gov.uk 
 

Health and Safety Executive 
2 Victoria Place 
Carlisle 
Cumbria 
CA1 3ER 

01228 634100 formsadmin.carlisle@hse.gsi.gov.uk 

Allerdale Borough Council 
Environmental Health Department 
Allerdale House 
Workington 
Cumbria 
CA14 3YJ 

0303 123 1702 environmental.health@allerdale.gov.uk 

Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Department 
Allerdale House 
Workington,   CA14 3YJ 
 
OR 
 
Lake District National Park Authority 
Planning Team 
Murley Moss 
Oxenholme Road 
Kendal,        LA9 7RL  

 
0303 123 1702 
 
 
 
 
 
01539 724555 

 
planning@allerdale.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
Keswick and Surrounding Areas 
planning@lakedistrict.gov.uk 
 

Page 118

mailto:licensing@allerdale.gov.uk
mailto:Admin-WestBCU@cumbria.pnn.police.uk
mailto:workington.technical@cumbriacc.gov.uk
mailto:formsadmin.carlisle@hse.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:environmental.health@allerdale.gov.uk
mailto:planning@allerdale.gov.uk
mailto:planning@lakedistrict.gov.uk


 

 

 Page 
42 

 
  

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES 

Name And Address Telephone No. Email Address 

Cumbria Safeguarding Children 
Partnership 
Cumbria County Council      
1st Floor Lower Gaol Yard 
The Courts 
Carlisle 
Cumbria 
CA3 8NA 

01228 226877 LSCB@cumbria.gov.uk 

Public Health Lead 
Public Health 
Cumbria County Council 
The Courts 
Carlisle 
CA3 8NA 

01228 226626 publichealthenquiries@cumbria.gov.uk  

Trading Standards 
Safer and Stronger Communities 
Cumbria County Council 
Workington Community Fire Station 
Moorclose Road 
Workington 
Cumbria 
CA14 5BF 

01539 713594 
Kendal H.Q. 

trading.standards@cumbria.gov.uk 

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) 
Alcohol Licensing Team 
Lunar House 
40 Wellesley Road 
Croydon 
CR9 2BY 

 Alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk  

 
 
  

Page 119

mailto:LSCB@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:publichealthenquiries@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:trading.standards@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:Alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk


 

 

 Page 
43 

 
  

Appendix 7   Other Useful Addresses 
  
North Cumbria Magistrates Court Service  
Rickergate  
Carlisle  
Cumbria  
CA3 8QH 
 
Tel: 01228 518800  
Email:  
 
 
West Allerdale Magistrates Court 
Hall Brow 
Workington 
Cumbria 
 
Tel: 01900 62244 
Email: 
 
 
Arts Council England 
14 Great Peter Street 
London 
SW1P 3NQ 
 
Tel 0845 300 6200 
Email: enquiries@artscouncil.org.uk 
Web: www.artscouncil.org.uk 
 
 
Association of Licensed Multiple Retailers (ALMR) 
3rd Floor International House 
Ealing 
London 
W5 5DB 
 
Tel: 0208 579 2080 
Web: www.almr.org.uk 
Email: info@almr.org.uk 
 
 
British Beer and Pub Association 
Market Towers 
1 Nine Elms Lane 
London 
SW8 5NQ 
 
Tel: 0207 627 9191 
Email: web@beerandpub.com 
Web: www.beerandpub.com 
 
British Board of Film Classification 
3 Soho Square 
London 

Page 120

mailto:enquiries@artscouncil.org.uk
http://www.artscouncil.org.uk/
http://www.almr.org.uk/
mailto:info@almr.org.uk
mailto:web@beerandpub.com
http://www.beerandpub.com/


 

 

 Page 
44 

 
  

W1D 3HD 
 
Tel: 020 7440 0394 
Web:   www.bbfc.co.uk/what-classifiction/guidlines 
Helpline:  www.helpline@bbfc.co.uk 
 
British Institute of Innkeeping 
Wessex House 
80 Park Street 
Camberley 
Surrey GU15 3PT 
 
Tel: 01276 684 449 
Email: reception@bii.org 
Web: www.bii.org 
 
Disability Rights Commission 
DCR Helpline 
Freepost MID01264 
Stratford Upon Avon  
CV37 9BR 
 
Tel: 08457 622 633 
Web: www.drc-gb.org 
 
 
Equity 
Guild house 
Upper Martins Lane 
London 
WC2H 9EG 
 
Tel: 0207 379 6000 
Email: info@equity.org.uk 
Web: www.equity.org.uk 
 
 
Jazz Services Limited 
1st Floor 
132 Southwark Street 
London 
SE1 0SW 
 
Tel: 020 79289089 
Email: admin@jazzservices.org.uk 
Web: www.jazzservices.org.uk 
Musicians Union 
40 Canal Street 
Manchester 
M1 3WD 
 
Tel: 0161 2361764 
Email: northwest@musiciansunion.org.uk 
Web: www.musiciansunion.org.uk 
 

Page 121

http://www.bbfc.co.uk/what-classifiction/guidlines
http://www.helpline@bbfc.co.uk
mailto:reception@bii.org
http://www.bii.org/
http://www.drc-gb.org/
mailto:info@equity.org.uk
http://www.equity.org.uk/
mailto:admin@jazzservices.org.uk
http://www.jazzservices.org.uk/
mailto:northwest@musiciansunion.org.uk
http://www.musiciansunion.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



1 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 
 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment is a way of examining how different communities or groups of people will be affected by a current 
or proposed service, policy or project. It helps identify ways of removing or reducing any adverse or negative impacts and with 
developing an action plan for ensuring the service, policy or project has the most positive outcomes for our communities. 
 
Equality Impact Assessments consider a range of issues in relation to equality groups. The Public Sector Equality Duty focuses on 
a set of protected characteristics which can be used as a tool to help us understand how our services will impact on our 
communities.    
 
The Equality Duty covers the following 9 protected characteristics: 

Age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion and belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage 
and civil partnership (only in the respect of the requirement of the general duty to have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination) 
 
The Council has also chosen to consider rurality and socio economic status as part of its Impact Assessments. 
 
 
 

EIA title: What service change, policy or project are you assessing? 

 
Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 

 
 

P
age 123



2 

1. What is the purpose of this service change, policy or project? 
 

 
Allerdale Borough Council is the licensing authority which regulates licensable activities under the Licensing Act 2003. It must 
review and publish a Statement of Licensing Policy which sets out the framework against which the authority will carry out its 
functions and how it will promote the four licensing objectives: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and 

 The protection of children from harm. 
 
 

 
 
2. How does it contribute to the priorities and objectives in our Council Plan? 

 
Council Strategy 2020-2030 – This policy contributes towards the Council achieving its strategic objectives by helping to create 
Thriving Towns and Villages where visitors and residents can enjoy a range of leisure and cultural activities and by supporting 
Resilient Communities helping to make sure that people can stay safe and feel safe in their everyday lives and helping to create 
safe, strong and inclusive communities.    
 
 

 
 
 
3. Who is likely to be affected by the service change, policy or project? For example: all residents, young people, people with 
disabilities. 

 

 
The licensing objectives result in this policy applying very broadly across all communities that live, work and visit the area. It seeks 
to improve the safety of the public and minimise the risk of crimes against them, to mitigate the effects of regulated activities on the 
communities in which the activities are held and to protect children from inappropriate activities. By its very nature this policy is 
relevant to all protected groups and in particular “children” have special status in view of the licensing objective to protect children 
from harm. 

P
age 124



3 

 
 

 
 
4. What information and evidence have you used to support your findings on impacts? List any consultation or 
engagement undertaken. For example: customer monitoring data, customer profiles, demographic information, survey results, 
customer feedback outcomes of consultation exercises. 
 

 
Applications under the Licensing Act 2003 are prescribed by regulation and the Authority does not have the power to set its own 
forms. The current forms do not provide for the gathering of demographic data. As a consequence of this the authority’s ability to 
analyse forms to examine any differential between protected groups is removed. 
 
 

 
 
5. How can this service, service change, policy or project help us to meet our equalities duties? For example: by engaging 
young people, promoting good race relations or targeting services to meet the needs of older people. 
 

 
Reviewing the policy every 5 years and going through the statutory consultation process ensures that as far as possible as many 
residents, representatives of licence holders, businesses, housing associations as well as any other organisations and the 
Responsible Authorities have an opportunity to put their views forward for consideration 
 
 

 
 
6. Are there any known equalities issues relating to this service, service change, policy or project that have been raised 
outside of Allerdale? For example, by other councils, or through national research. 
 

 
There has not been any event that indicates the policy adversely affects any protected group.  
 
 

 

P
age 125



4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 126



5 

7. Impact and action plan 

Use the table below to indicate whether the service change, policy or project is likely to have a positive1, adverse2 or neutral impact 
on each of the groups listed and what that impact is. (See glossary below for definitions) 
 
You also need to indicate what actions or provisions you have put in place, or propose to put in place, to ensure you address the 
adverse impacts identified. 
 

Equality group 
 

Positive 
(tick) 

Adverse 
(tick) 

Neutral 
(tick) 

What is the impact? Mitigating actions proposed (to 
address adverse impact) 

Age 
 

√   Apart from the measures designed to 

protect children from harm, there are 

no other measures which distinguish 

individuals on the basis of age. Policy 

seeks to positively consider children by 

ensuring appropriate measures are in 

place for regulated entertainment and 

sale of alcohol so they are not exposed 

to adult entertainment and BBFC 

guidelines are adopted for exhibition of 

films. There are lawful age restrictions 

within the Licensing Act 2003 which 

prevent individuals under 18 from 

applying for certain types of licence and 

contains various offences relating to 

children. It also prevents unsupervised 

sales of alcohol by under 18s and has 

mandatory conditions stipulating 

 

                                                           
1 A positive impact is where one or more group or groups of people are put at an advantage by the way a particular policy or procedure is carried out. A 
positive impact may also occur where a particular policy or procedure will contribute to promoting equality, equal opportunities or improving relations within 
equality target groups. 

 
2 An adverse impact is where one or more group or groups of people are put at a disadvantage by the way a particular policy or procedure is carried out. For 
example, disabled or elderly people, or people living in very isolated rural areas may struggle to use wheelie bins as easily as other people. 

P
age 127



6 

Equality group 
 

Positive 
(tick) 

Adverse 
(tick) 

Neutral 
(tick) 

What is the impact? Mitigating actions proposed (to 
address adverse impact) 

premises must have in place a challenge 

policy for age.  

Disability 
 

  √   

Gender 
 

  √   

Gender reassignment 
 

  √   

Marital and civil 
partnership status 

  √   

Pregnancy and 
maternity 

  √   

Race and minority 
ethnic groups 

  √   

Religion and/or belief   √    

Sexual orientation   √   

People in rural areas 
 

  √   

People on low 
incomes 

  √   

 
 
  
8. Are the adverse impacts justified? If they are, explain in what way. For example: disproportionate costs, legislative constraints. 
 

 
 
Not applicable 

P
age 128



7 

 
 

 
 
 
 
EIA completion 
 

Date completed: 4 November 2020 

Lead officer: Gillian Collinson 

Head of Service: Sharon Sewell 

 
 
Please forward an electronic copy of this completed assessment to: policy@allerdale.gov.uk 

P
age 129

mailto:policy@allerdale.gov.uk


8 

Glossary 
 
Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being within an age group (for example, 18-30 
year-olds). 
 
Disability: A person has a disability if s/he has a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse 
effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability; Mental Health; Learning 
disability. 
 
Gender: This refers to a person being either male or female. 
 
Gender reassignment: This is the process of transitioning from one sex to another, considered a personal process rather than a 
medical one and it does not require someone to undergo medical treatment in order to be protected. 
 
Marital and civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners must be treated the same as 
married couples on a range of legal matters. 
 
Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, 
protection against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding. 
 
Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes, 
Asian, Black and White minority ethnic groups inc. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers. 
 
Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. “Belief” includes religious and 
philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (for example, Atheism). The category includes, Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, 
Buddhism, and non-religious beliefs such as Humanism. 
 
Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes. 
 
Rurality: Allerdale is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this means we have at least 80 percent of our population in rural settlements and 
larger market towns. 
 
 

P
age 130



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Procedure at Licensing Meetings 
 

Once the Chair has moved the exemption paragraph the press and public will 
leave the room   
 
Procedure 
 
Step 1 
 
The Chair will ask those present to introduce themselves and explain the 
procedure to be followed. 
 
Step 2 
 
The Chair will ask the author of the report (or their substitute) to outline the 
proposal and the background to the case.  Their role will be to provide factual 
information to the committee. 
 
The Chair invites members of the committee to ask the presenting officer any 
questions they may have about the application.  
 
Step 3 
 
The Chair invites Councillor(s) attending under Procedural Rule 4.31.2 to 
come forward and present objection(s). 
 

 Each Councillor is permitted 10 minutes 

 The Chair asks if Members of the Committee have any questions to 
ask the Councillor(s) 

 The Councillor(s) return to the public area. 
 
Step 4 
 
The Chair invites applicant or the applicant’s representative to make 
representations.  The applicant/applicants representative is permitted 10 
minutes 
 

 The Chair asks if any member of the committee/officers present have 
any questions to ask the applicant/applicants representative 

 
Step 5 
 
The Chair invites any party making representations (including any other 
persons who have been given permission to participate) (if any) to present 
their comment(s). 
 

 The Chair asked if any member of the committee have any questions 
to ask any party making representations  

Page 131

Agenda Annex



 
Step 6 
 
The Chair offers the applicant/applicants representative the final opportunity 
to address the Committee.  The applicant/applicants representative is 
permitted 10 minutes. 
 
Step 7 
 
The Chair will ask the parties to withdraw so that the committee can consider 
its determination.  In considering its determination, the Committee may seek 
advice from its Legal Adviser. 
 
Step 8 
 
The parties will be re-called and informed of the Committees decision. 
 

 Applicant to be advised that the decision will be confirmed in writing 
within 7 days. 

 

 Applicant to be advised of any appeal procedure. 
 
All parties will leave swiftly prior to the next case. 

Page 132



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Procedure at Licensing Meetings  
 

Policy Formulation 
 
 
Procedure 
 
Step 1 
 
The Chair will explain the procedure to be followed. 
 
Step 2 
 
The Chair will ask the presenting officer (or their substitute) to outline the 
proposal and the background to the case.  Their role will be to provide factual 
information to the committee. 
 
The Chair invites members of the committee to ask the presenting officer any 
questions they may have about the policy.  
 
Step 3 
 
The Chair invites Councillor(s) attending under Procedural Rule 4.31.2 to 
come forward and make representations 
 

 Each Councillor is permitted 10 minutes 

 The Chair asks if Members of the Committee have any questions to 
ask the Councillor(s) 

 The Councillor(s) return to the public area. 
 
Step 4 
 
The Chair invites any party making representations (if any) to present their 
comment(s). 
 

 The Chair to ask if any member of the committee has any questions to 
ask any party making representations.  

 
Step 5 
 
The committee will consider the policy.  In considering the policy, the 
Committee may seek advice from its Legal Adviser. 
 

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes , 21/08/2019 Licensing Panel
	Minutes , 12/09/2019 Licensing Panel
	Minutes , 14/02/2020 Licensing Panel
	Minutes , 13/09/2019 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 04/10/2019 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 19/12/2019 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 24/12/2019 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 10/02/2020 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 14/02/2020 Licensing Regulatory Panel

	5 Review of Statement of Licensing Policy 2021
	Appendix 1 SLO Amendments final
	Appendix 2 ScheduleofResponses2020final
	DRAFT ABC Statement of Licensing Policy for consultation2020
	Appendix 4 Equality Impact Assessment Form

	 Licensing Committee Procedures
	Licensing  Comm Procedures Policy


